
Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 06, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of February 20, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Hearing on the proposed condemnation of property located at 2208 Coventry Lane. 
 
a) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
b) Oral comments. 
 
c) Resolution declaring the property located at 2208 Coventry Lane to be a nuisance due to being 
structurally unsafe, a fire hazard, or otherwise dangerous to human life and health, and ordering 
abatement of said nuisance by removal, repair or demolition of said property and requiring the owner 
of said property to abate said nuisance or submit a viable plan by March 20, 2023.  

3. Public hearing on a proposal to enter into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider 
conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 02/24/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, and 
approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying certain city-owned real estate 
to McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC. 

4. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.  

1



Page 2 of 4 

 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 02/24/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

5. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2023 
Street Construction Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 02/24/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2023 Street Construction Project. 

6. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the North 
Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase I. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published 02/24/2023) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase I. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

7. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of February 20, 2023 relative to the 
following items: 
a) City Council Email System Discussion. 
b) Committee to draft request for proposal (RFP) for assessment of the Public Safety Department. 

8. Approve a proclamation recognizing March 2023 as Women's History month. 

9. Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and Commissions: 
a) Melissa Heston, Human Rights Commission. 

10. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2023. 

11. Approve the application of Robert Schmitz, d/b/a Cedar Valley Bin Cleaning (Bennington Fields, 
LLC), for a Mobile Merchant license. 

12. Approve an Order Accepting Acknowledgment/Settlement Agreement with Cedar Star, Inc., d/b/a 
Bani's, 2128 College Street, for a second tobacco violation. 

2



Page 3 of 4 

13. Approve the application of Bani's, 2128 College Street, for a cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit - 
change in ownership. 

14. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Hatchlings & Hens, 109 Main Street, Special Class B retail native wine – renewal. 
b) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – renewal. 
c) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
d) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 
e) Bani's, 2128 College Street, Class E retail alcohol – new – change in ownership. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

15. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Apple Device Enrollment Program Facilitation 
Agreement with USCC Distribution Co. LLC, relative to mobile device management. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment to Agreement for Private 
Development and Memorandum of Agreement Regarding Minimum Improvements with McWing, 
L.L.C. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Lease relative to a property vacated by flood 
buyout programs. 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing expenditure of funds to repair a pump at the 17th Street Lift 
Station. 

20. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the Oak 
Park Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project. 

21. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of K&W Electric, Inc. for the Hudson 
Road & West Ridgeway Avenue Intersection Improvements Project. 

22. Resolution approving and accepting two Warranty Deeds, in conjunction with the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

23. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of twenty Owner Purchase Agreements; and 
approving and accepting twenty Temporary Construction Easements, four Storm Sewer and 
Drainage Easements, and one Permanent Water Main Easement, in conjunction with the North 
Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project. 

24. Resolution setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the maximum levy rate. 

25. Resolution setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning Commission review of 
site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). 

26. Resolution setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to eliminating the shared parking requirement 
in the Downtown Charter District (CD-DT). 

27. Resolution setting March 20, 2023 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing residential parking 
requirements in the Downtown Charter District (CD-DT) to one parking space per bedroom. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

28. Allow Bills and Claims for March 6, 2023. 

3



Page 4 of 4 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

29. Refer to the Public Works Committee discussion regarding the river dam and the future of the dam 
on the Cedar River.  

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 20, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
SIMON HARDING, MAYOR PRO TEM, PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse (via phone), Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Pro 
Tem Harding led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
54160 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the minutes of the Regular 

Meeting of February 6, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
54161 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the minutes of the Special 

City Council meeting of January 30, 2023 be approved as presented and ordered 
of record. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
54162 - City Clerk Danielsen noted that item #3 was being removed from the agenda. 
 
54163 -     Mayor Pro Tem Harding recognized Administrative Supervisor Kim Kerr for 

receiving her Certified Municipal Clerk certification. 
 
54164 - Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, suggested locations to add public restrooms 

downtown. 
 
  Julie Shimek, 104 Main Street, commented on her vehicle being towed from a 

downtown lot and requested a referral to review the 48-hour parking limit in 
municipal lots.   

 
  Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, commented on a personnel issue regarding 

fire chief leave and distributed information to Council. 
 
  Controller/City Treasurer Roeding and Finance & Business Operations Director 

Rodenbeck responded to questions regarding COVID and ARPA funds received 
for expenditures and provided information about the City Council’s transfer of 
those funds to the City’s emergency fund. 

 
  Don Blau, 527 Jessica Lane, also commented on public restrooms downtown 

and spoke in support of Julie Shimek and expressed concerns with downtown  
parking. 

 
54165 -     Community Development Director Sheetz introduced new Cultural Programs 

Supervisor Cory Hurless, and Human Resources Manager Schindel introduced 
new Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI) Specialist Chelsie Luhring. Hurless and 
Luhring commented. 

 
  City Administrator Gaines provided an update on the State rollback and the 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

recent County Emergency Management Agency (EMA) decision, and noted that 
both of these will affect the upcoming budget. 

 
54166 -    It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3023, 

amending the Zoning Map by placing property located on Lots 5 and 6 of the 
Midway Business Park in the R-4, Multiple Unit Residentail Zoning District, 
pursuant to provisions of a Zoning Agreement, be passed upon its third and final 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor Pro Tem 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then declared Ordinance 
#3023 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54167 -    It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that Ordinance #3024, 

amending the Zoning Map by removing property generally described as Lots 1-4 
of Midway Second Addition from the R-4, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning 
District, to the R-1, One & Two Unit Residential Zoning District, be passed upon 
its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor Pro Tem put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then 
declared Ordinance #3024 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54168 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
  

 Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of February 6, 
2023 relative to the following item: 
a) FY2024 Budget. 

 Receive and file the City Council Special Standing Committee Meeting minutes 
of January 30, 2023 relative to the following item: 
a) 6th & Main Intersection. 

 Receive and file the minutes of the February 3, 2023 City Council Work Session - 
Joint Meeting with Legislators. 

 Approve a proclamation recognizing February 24, 2023 as Jamaica Day. 

 Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Mike Mangin, Board of Adjustment, term ending 03/31/2028. 

 Receive and file the 2022 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, 
Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental 
Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, Housing Commission and Bicycle 
& Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

 Approve the application of Posh Smoke and Vape, 6322 University Avenue, 
Suite L, for a cigarette/tobacco/nicotine/vapor permit. 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

 Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - 
renewal. 
c) The Wine Shop, 305 Main Street, Special Class C retail alcohol – new. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

54169 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Schultz that the following resolutions be 
introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #23,063, amending Resolution No. 22,901, approving and authorizing 

a form of Loan Agreement and authorizing and providing for the issuance of 
$3,860,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2022, and levying a 
tax to pay said Notes; Approval of Amendment to Tax Exemption Certificate.  

 Resolution #23,064, designating July 3, 2023 (9 a.m.-10 p.m.) as an additional 
day of use for consumer fireworks within the City limits. 

 Resolution #23,065, approving and adopting the HOME-American Rescue Plan 
(ARP) Allocation Plan and Annual Action Plan. 

 Resolution #23,066, approving and authorizing execution of a First Amendment 
to the Subrecipient Agreement for Federally Funded Project with Refugee & 
Immigrant Voices in Action (RIVA), f/n/a Ethnic Minorities of Burma Advocacy 
and Resource Center (EMBARC), for Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

 Resolution #23,067, approving and authorizing Amendment #3 to the Entitlement 
Community Development Block Grant COVID-19 Program Contract with the Iowa 
Economic Development Authority (IEDA) relative to Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. 

 Resolution #23,068, approving and accepting a Temporary Construction 
Easement, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,069, approving and accepting five Warranty Deeds and one Quit 
Claim Deed, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,070, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the bid of K&W Electric, Inc., in the amount of $728,796.05, being the only bid 
received for the Hudson Road & West Ridgeway Avenue Intersection 
Improvements Project. 

 Resolution #23,071, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the bid of Peterson Contracting, Inc., in the amount of $735,520.00, being the 
only bid received for the Oak Park Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Replacement 
Project. 

 Resolution #23,072, receiving and filing, and setting March 6, 2023 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

of cost for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

 Resolution #23,073, receiving and filing, and setting March 6, 2023 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2023 Street Construction Project. 

 Resolution #23,074, receiving and filing, and setting March 6, 2023 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project - Phase I. 

 Resolution #23,075, setting March 6, 2023 as the date of public hearing to 
consider entering into an Agreement for Private Development and to consider 
conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to McDonald Construction & 
Remodeling, LLC. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor Pro Tem put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then declared Resolutions #23,063 through 
#23,075 duly passed and adopted. 

54170 -   It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #23,076, 
approving and authorizing submission of the Iowa Certified Local Government 
(CLG) 2022 Annual Report of the Historic Preservation Commission to the State 
Historical Society of Iowa, be adopted. Historic Preservation Chair Julie 
Etheredge provided an update and summary of HPC past activities and plans for 
the upcoming year. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor Pro 
Tem put the question on the motion, and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, 
Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor Pro Tem then declared 
Resolution #23,076 duly passed and adopted. 

 
54171 -  It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Dunn that the bills and claims of 

February 20, 2023 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
54172 -   It was moved by Sires and seconded by Schultz review of the parking ordinance 

for the municipal lot behind the 100 block of Main Street. Following comments by 
Mayor Pro Tem Harding and Councilmembers Sires, Kruse, Schultz and Dunn, it 
was moved by Dunn and seconded by Kruse to amend the motion to refer to the 
Finance & Business Operations Committee review of parking permits purchased 
for all downtown municipal lots. Motion to amend carried 6-1, with Sires voting 
Nay. The original motion as amended then carried unanimously. City Attorney 
Rogers and Administrator Gaines responded to questions by Councilmembers 
Ganfield and Schultz, and Public Safety Director Berte. 

 
54173 -     It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Ganfield to adjourn to Executive 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Session to discuss Collective Bargaining per Iowa Code Section 20.17(3) as 
negotiating sessions, strategy meetings of public employers, mediation, and the 
deliberative process of arbitrators. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:02 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Pro Tem Harding reconvened the Council meeting at 8:36 P.M.         
 
54174 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Sires that the meeting be adjourned 

at 8:37 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Inspection Services Division 

 

  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert Green & City Council  
 
 FROM: Jamie Castle, AIA 
  Building Official   
 
 DATE: March 6, 2023  
 
 SUBJECT: Condemnation Hearing for 2208 Coventry Lane 
 
On February 15, 2023 the Condemnation Committee, selected by Mayor Green, 
inspected 2208 Coventry Lane as per City Code Ordinance 7-20(14) IBC 116.3 
Procedure for Condemnation and Removal.  Per the ordinance, the Mayor shall appoint 
three council members to inspect along with the building official, fire chief, and county 
health officer and report their findings to the City Council.  If the Committee reports the 
building is unsafe or dangerous the matter shall be set down for hearing at the next 
regular meeting of the Council.   
 
The appointed Committee consisted of Council members Kelly Dunn, Dustin Ganfield, 
and Simon Harding as well as Building Official Jamie Castle, Captain John Zolondek, 
Code Enforcement Officer Adam Spray, and County Health Officers Jared Parameter 
and Eric Heinen.  The owner of the property was not on site at the time of the 
inspection.  The committee entered the property by use of an Administrative Warrant. 
 
Nuisance history of 2208 Coventry Lane: 

 This property has been an ongoing nuisance for noxious weeds.  Since 2013 City 
contractors have had to mow this yard at least once a year due to lack of 
compliance.  In 2022 it was mowed three times and the property owner was 
served a citation for multiple violations per Ordinance 17-247(d). 

 Two citations have been issued to the property owner for building and property 
maintenance nuisances.  These citations were issued after multiple notices were 
sent in hopes to gain voluntary compliance.  The primary issue was damaged 
siding and soffit which allowed racoons to enter the property and make a home.   

o The first citation was issued in 2018. The property owner was found guilty 
and she abated the nuisance.  The work was inspected from the exterior 
through the nuisance ordinance.  The repair did not require a building 

10

Item 2.



permit.  Therefore the city was not able to enter the property to confirm the 
repairs were sufficient for the long term. 

o A second citation was issued in 2021.  The same issues existed.  The 
property owner was found guilty but did not abate the issue.   

 Complaints regarding this property and the exterior condition along with the 
racoon nuisance have continued.   

 During one of our attempts to speak directly to the owner, the Code Enforcement 
officer approached the front door.  From the front door he could see into the 
home and noticed there may be additional life safety issues on the interior.  As 
the homeowner refuses to speak with city staff, we decided for their health and 
safety in addition to the neighbors concerns, we must request a condemnation 
committee.    

 

 

Results of Condemnation Inspection: 
 
Exterior: 

 Damage to the siding, soffit, downspouts, and front porch.  The exterior finish is 
removed and access to the attic is completely open for the elements potentially 
causing damage to the structure.  Violation of §15-2(24), 15-2(31)(b,c,d,h) 

 There was evidence of racoons living in the attic.  The numerous openings to the 
attic from the exterior had paw prints and mud near them. There was also animal 
feces throughout the property.  Violation of §15-2(19) 

 Exterior light fixture was no longer anchored and hanging from the siding causing 
a potential fire hazard. Violation of NEC 410.30 and 410.36 

 Rear exterior wall showed a significant deformation (bulge) which could mean 
several things from a structural issue to something being stuck within the wall.   It 
was not noticed on the interior. 

 

Interior: 

 The property has been neglected and is beginning to deteriorate.  There are 
several areas in the ceiling showing water damage.  It is potentially from the 
open access to the attic.  Violation of §15-2(24) 

 The home is insanitary.  Violation of §7-20(15) 
o There were significant piles of trash and debris throughout the home.  

Examples are the rotting pile of banana peels and tea bags on the table 
and the pile of used feminine products in the bathroom. 

o The stairs were completely full of trash and inaccessible. 
o There was no running water throughout the home.   After the inspection, I 

contacted CFU and learned the water was shut off in December of 2019 
for lack of access to read the meter. Violation of IRC 306.4, UPC 102.3, 
UPC 601.2.1 

 The home is unsafe.  Violation of §7-20(15)  
o The home is full of debris with no clear path of egress to any door within 

the home.  Piles of trash and debris cover the floors making the doors 

11

Item 2.



difficult to open and the walking path unlevel and unsafe. Violation of IRC 
R311.1 

o The stairs leading to the basement are filled with trash.  Access to the 
basement and utilities is inaccessible from the interior of the home. 
Violation of IRC R311.7 

 Utilities are not functioning.  In December of 2019 the gas and water were 
disconnected as the property owner would not allow access to CFU to read the 
meter.  As noted above, even if they had access, they would not have been able 
to get to the meter safely.  Because there was no gas, the furnace was not 
functioning during our visit.  We observed various electric space heaters and 
extension cords.  These heaters were placed on top of the piles of debris.  The 
heaters were running at the time of the inspection even though the homeowner 
was not home.  One heater was malfunctioning and sparking while we were 
there.  We unplugged this heater and placed it in the garage.  Lack of a 
functioning furnace is a life safety violation, and the space heaters are a fire 
hazard.  Violation of IFC 603.9.3, IFC 603.9.4, IRC 303.10 

 

 

 

2208 Coventry Lane Photos: 
 

 
   
 

   

12

Item 2.



 
   
On February 21, 2023 the property owner was served notice regarding this 
condemnation hearing.  At the same time the property was posted as unsafe for human 
occupancy.  The property owner was verbally warned about the living conditions and 
our concerns about the home and her safety.  She seemed unconcerned.  We believe 
she is still living in the home even though it has been posted. 
 
Staff wishes to note that due to the history of violations with this property, the 
uninhabitable condition (due to lack of utilities and fire hazard), and the building's 
potential structural issues due to neglect of protective systems, it is doubtful the 
property can be properly rehabilitated.  Demolition may be needed.      

    

13

Item 2.



Recommendation: 
 

The Department of Community Development recommends the following: 
 

1. City Council declare the property a nuisance. 

2. City Council order abatement of the nuisance.   The nuisance must be either 

completely abated or a viable plan of action with a detailed schedule for 

completion of the abatement must be submitted to the Building Official by 4:00 

PM March 20, 2023.  The Building Official will be granted authority to reinspect 

the property after 4:00 PM on March 20, 2023 to determine compliance if a viable 

plan of action was not submitted.  If a viable plan is submitted and approved the 

building official will also be granted the authority to periodically reinspect the 

property to ensure the plan is being met as submitted.  A reinspection fee of $75 

shall be assessed for every inspection after the initial inspection to ensure 

compliance. 

a. A viable plan requires: 

i. All work to be complete by June 20, 2023.   

ii. The work to be complete includes all trash and debris is removed 

from the home, house is clean and sanitized, exterior walls are 

properly repaired, exterior of the house is cleaned, rear wall is open 

and investigated, CFU is provided access to the home to read 

meters, utilities are restored (this will include any required 

inspections to reconnect the gas), a licensed plumber inspects and 

repairs the plumbing as required for proper function.   

3. If the owner fails to either submit a viable plan of action or abate the nuisance by 

March 20, 2023, the Building Official is hereby directed to do whatever may be 

necessary to remove such nuisance by demolition or removal of the home, and 

to levy the cost of such abatement as a lien upon the above-described real 

estate, to be collected in the same manner as property taxes.   

4. If the owner fails to meet the plan by June 20, 2023, the Building Official is 

hereby directed to do whatever may be necessary to remove such nuisance by 

demolition or removal of the home, and to levy the cost of such abatement as a 

lien upon the above-described real estate, to be collected in the same manner as 

property taxes.   

 

 

14

Item 2.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: February 27, 2022 

SUBJECT:      McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC Economic Development 
Project 

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
For the past several months, staff has been working with the owner of McDonald 
Construction & Remodeling, LLC toward the construction of a new 8,400 square foot 
building for their wall framing business. The proposed project will occur on Lot 15 of the 
Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition (2.0-acre parcel of which 
approximately 1.3 acres is buildable after setback and open space requirement). This 
new facility will have a minimum building valuation and permit valuation of $750,000 and 
a total project minimum assessed valuation of $883,000 (including land). 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 

As noted in the Introduction, the proposed building will be constructed and owned by 
McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC, and will consist of an approximate 8,400 
square foot building to be located along Rail Way on the north end of the Northern 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park (adjacent to the storm water detention basin). The proposed 
project will have a minimum building valuation of $750,000, and a total project valuation 
including land of $883,000. McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC will commence 
construction this spring/summer with completion anticipated within approximately 9-12 
months.  
 

 

COMPANY PROFILE 
 

McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC is a framing contractor that has worked in 
the Cedar Valley since 2008 and currently employs 19 people and intends to grow. The 
company specializes in residential and commercial wood framing and has built over 500 
homes and over 700 apartment units in the area. The company is looking to locate in 
the Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park to allow the business to expand their indoor 

15

Item 3.



wall assembly capabilities and have better semi-truck access. Wall panels are currently 
assembled in climate controlled environments, stored outdoors, and delivered by semi-
trucks to the job where additional crews complete the framing. The site in the Northern 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park would allow easier semi access with a pull in pull out exit 
with a larger outdoor storage yard for completed wall panels and equipment. The 
storage yard will be fenced in for a clean appearance and for security purposes.  
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 

Land Incentive 

 

For the proposed McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC project, the company 
would receive at no cost, Lot 15 of Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition 
(2.0-acre parcel of which approximately 1.4 acres is buildable after setback and open 
space requirements). This lot is somewhat oddly shaped, in that it is located along a 
curve in the road and is fairly wide in length but not very deep (due to setback 
requirements and a large drainage easement along the rear of the property). However, 
this configuration fits this project nicely, as the owner needs two access points from the 
street for larger semi-truck access for deliveries, and having a longer length lot helps 
accommodate this need. Given that, staff feels that the land incentive provided for this 
project is consistent with prior City land incentives for other comparable projects.  

Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 

 
Because the taxable valuation of this project will be below $1,000,000, there will be no 
tax incentives included with this project. 
 

Conclusion 

 
As this memorandum indicates, McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC is 
proposing to construct a new 8,400 square foot industrial building on Lot 15 of Northern 
Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition. The proposed new construction building 
project will have a minimum building permit valuation of $750,000 and a total Minimum 
Assessed Valuation of $883,000 including land.  Construction would commence this 
spring with completion anticipated in approximately 9-12 months. 
 
The Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC has been reviewed by both parties, 
and is attached for your review and approval. 
 
 
 
 
 

16

Item 3.



RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private 

Development and a Minimum Assessment Agreement by and between the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC, and 
approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to 
certain real estate to McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC. 

 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed McDonald Construction & 
Remodeling, LLC economic development project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
         
        
 
 
 

17

Item 3.



No
rth

ern
 D

r

Le
ve

rse
e R

d

Hw
y 2

18

Hwy 218

Rail Way

I

Owen
Contracting

East Central
Iowa Coop

Project Location

McDonald Construction
& Remodeling, LLC
8,400 sq. ft. Industrial Building

Standard Distribution

18

Item 3.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5160 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND A MINIMUM ASSESSMENT 
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND 
MCDONALD CONSTRUCTION & REMODELING, LLC, AND APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A QUIT CLAIM DEED CONVEYING TITLE TO 
CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TO MCDONALD CONSTRUCTION & REMODELING, 
LLC. 

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 
(Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 
(Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 
(Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 
amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by 
Resolution No. 21,279 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), amended a seventh time by 
Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth 
time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 2020, the City Council has approved and adopted 
an urban renewal plan designated as the “Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Plan” (the “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Urban Renewal Plan be developed as 
part of the overall development area covered by said Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from McDonald Construction & Remodeling, 
LLC  ("Developer"), in the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the 
"Agreement") by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") and the Developer, 
pursuant to which, among other things, the Developer would agree to construct certain Minimum 
Improvements (as defined in the Agreement) on certain real property located within the Urban 
Renewal Plan as legally described in the Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
this reference (defined in the Agreement as the "Development Property"), consisting of the 
construction of an Industrial Use Warehouse Facility totaling at least 8,400 square feet of finished 
space, together with all related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed Development 
Agreement; and 

19

Item 3.



 2 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City provide certain financial 
incentives for the urban renewal project under the terms and following satisfaction of the 
conditions set forth in the Agreement, consisting of conveyance of title to the Development 
Property to the Developer, the Development Property being legally described as follows: 
 

Lot 15, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 2.04 acres more or less); and 

 
 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize cities 
to make loans and grants and to convey real property to developers for economic development 
purposes in furtherance of the objectives of an urban renewal project and to appropriate such 
funds, make such expenditures and convey such real property as may be necessary to carry out 
the purposes of said Chapters, and to levy taxes and assessments for such purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City, the Developer and the 
Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa, enter into a Minimum Assessment Agreement (the 
"Minimum Assessment Agreement"), whereby the minimum actual taxable value of the 
improvements to be constructed thereon would be established at an amount not less than 
$883,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2034; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the Agreement is in the best 
interests of the City and the residents thereof, and that the performance by the City of its 
obligations thereunder is a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Urban 
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the City's 
performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities and 
objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking into 
account the factors set forth in Chapter 15A, to-wit: 
 

a) Businesses that add diversity to or generate new opportunities for the Iowa 
economy should be favored over those that do not. 

 
b) Development policies in the dispensing of the funds should attract, retain, or 

expand businesses that produce exports or import substitutes or which generate 
tourism-related activities. 

 
c) Development policies in the dispensing or use of the funds should be targeted 

toward businesses that generate public gains and benefits, which gains and 
benefits are warranted in comparison to the amount of the funds dispensed. 

 
d) Development policies in dispensing the funds should not be used to attract a 

business presently located within the state to relocate to another portion of the 
state unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside the state 
or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will generate significant 
new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of other jobs in similar Iowa businesses 
being displaced shall not be considered direct jobs for the purpose of dispensing 
funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the requirements of Iowa Code 

Section 403.8 with respect to the transfer of property in an urban renewal area are satisfied insofar 
as the Development Property is being disposed of for the purpose of development of an industrial 

20

Item 3.



 3 

building (see Iowa Code Section 403.8(2)(b)), and because the terms of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement satisfy the safe harbor contained in Iowa Code Section 403.8(3). 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the performance by the City of its obligations under the Agreement, 
including but not limited to conveyance of the Development Property to the Developer in 
connection with the development of the Development Property under the terms set forth in the 
Agreement, be and is hereby declared to be a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance 
of the Urban Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the 
City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities 
and objectives of the City within the meaning of chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking 
into account the factors set forth therein. 
 
 Section 2.  That the form and content of the Agreement, the provisions of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby are in all respects authorized, 
approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Agreement for and on behalf of 
the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, and that from and after the 
execution and delivery of the Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as 
may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement as executed, 
including but not limited to execution and delivery of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to the 
Development Property to the Developer. 
 
 Section 3.  That the form and content of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, the 
provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 
respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now 
before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary 
to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as executed. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ________________, 2023. 
 
 

     
 _________________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

21

Item 3.



 4 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution 

No. _____ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2023. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the official 

seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 2023. 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

22

Item 3.



23

Item 3.



24

Item 3.



25

Item 3.



26

Item 3.



27

Item 3.



28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



31

Item 3.



32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



34

Item 3.



35

Item 3.



36

Item 3.



37

Item 3.



38

Item 3.



39

Item 3.



40

Item 3.



41

Item 3.



42

Item 3.



43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



45

Item 3.



46

Item 3.



47

Item 3.



48

Item 3.



49

Item 3.



50

Item 3.



51

Item 3.



52

Item 3.



53

Item 3.



54

Item 3.



55

Item 3.



56

Item 3.



57

Item 3.



58

Item 3.



59

Item 3.



60

Item 3.



61

Item 3.



62

Item 3.



63

Item 3.



64

Item 3.



65

Item 3.



66

Item 3.



67

Item 3.



68

Item 3.



69

Item 3.



70

Item 3.



71

Item 3.



72

Item 3.



73

Item 3.



 

 

 
QUIT CLAIM DEED 

Recorder’s Cover Sheet 

 

Preparer Information: Kevin Rogers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, Phone: (319) 

273-8600 

 

Taxpayer Information: McDonald Construction & Remodeling, L.L.C., 5020 Ironwood Drive, 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

 

Return Document To: City Clerk, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

Grantors: City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

Grantees: McDonald Construction & Remodeling, L.L.C. 

 

Legal Description:  See Page 2 

 

Document or instrument number of previously recorded documents:   

  

74

Item 3.



 

 

 

 

QUIT CLAIM DEED 

 

 For the consideration of One Dollar(s) and other valuable consideration, City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of Iowa, does hereby 

Quit Claim to McDonald Construction & Remodeling, L.L.C., a limited liability company 

organized and existing under the laws of Iowa all our right, title, interest, estate, claim and 

demand in the following described real estate in Black Hawk County, Iowa: 

 

 

Lot 15, Northern Cedar Falls Industrial Park Phase I Addition, City of Cedar 

Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; subject to the conditions, covenants and 

restrictions contained in the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

approved by Cedar Falls City Council Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted 

on November 12, 1990 (Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution 

No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 (Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time 

by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended 

a third time by Resolution No. 18,377  on December 10, 2012 (Ordinance No. 

2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution No. 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 

amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a 

sixth time by Resolution No. 21,079 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), 

amended a seventh time by Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 

(Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth time by Resolution No. 22,205 on 

December 21, 2020, and further subject to restrictive covenants, ordinances and 

limited access provisions of record, if any, and to existing easements of record.   

 

There is no known private burial site, well, solid waste disposal site, underground 

storage tank, hazardous waste, or private sewage disposal system on the property 

as described in Iowa Code Section 558.69, and therefore the transaction is exempt 

from the requirement to submit a groundwater hazard statement. 

 

This deed is exempt according to Iowa Code 428A.2(6). 

 

 Each of the undersigned hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and distributive 

share in and to the real estate.  Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall 

be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according 

to the context. 

Dated:  __________________________. 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an Iowa municipal 

corporation 

75

Item 3.



 

©The Iowa State Bar Association 2023 

IowaDocs® 

Form No. 106, Quit Claim Deed 

Revised June 2022 

 

By ____________________________________ 

Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK 

 
This record was acknowledged before me on _________________________________, 

by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation. 
 

__________________________________ 

Signature of Notary Public 
 
 

76

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 6, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3316 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Specifications and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 

This project consists of installing a cured in place liner within existing 8-inch diameter 
sewer lines in selected areas of the City. The total project involves approximately 6,147 
linear feet and 99 sewer service taps. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $235,157.00. The project 
will be funded by Sewer Rental Funds.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Specifications and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Sanitary Sewer 
Rehabilitation Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

77

Item 4.



1st St

University Ave

Lincoln St W Airline Hwy

Center St

Hudson Rd

1st St

Lincoln St

University Ave

Greenhill Rd

Lone Tree Rd

18th St18th St
Rainbow Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

Le
ver

see
 Rd

Ma
in 

St

Waterloo Rd

S M
ain

 St

12th St

Ma
in 

St

Cedar Heights Dr

Orchard Dr

"!58

"!27

"!27

"!57

"!58
"!27

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Grand Blvd

5th St

Blu
ff S

t

Ch
ris

kin
 Rd Brookside Dr

Laverne Ln

Pa
nth

er 
LnSpringbrook Dr

E 14th
Ct

17th
St

Hacienda
Ct

Opal Ln

Bla
ckh

aw
k

Vlg

Carol Ct

Horty St

Knoke
Pl

Le
ga

cy 
Ln

Gr
an

dv
iew

Ct

Lo
ng

vie
w

Ct

Me
lro

se
Ct

Em
era

ld Rd

Illin
ois

 St

Grant St

Union Dr

Wh
ite

Wa
y

S Forest
Rd

Floral Ct

Ind
ian

a S
t

Woodlawn
Ave

Superior
Way

Orchard
Pl

25th
St

Ba
rba

ra
Dr

Beach St

6th St

Bro
ns

on
 Ct

Es
tat

e
Dr

26th St

Meadow
Park Dr

Ch
ap

ma
n

Ct

Stanwood Dr

Ida St

Ho
we St

Co
tta

ge
Ln

Ga
llo

wa
y

Av
e

Tilton
Dr

Briarwood
Hills Dr

Ge
ne

vie
ve

Gr
eel

ey 
St

A S
t

B S
t

Linda Dr

Idaho Rd

DruryLn

Market
St

Woodland
Dr

La
uri

e
Av

e

Irv
ing

 St

Fe
rn Av
e

Cedar St

19th St

Arizona
Rd

Utah
Rd

Ke
nn

ed
y

Av
e

Seerley Blvd

Hig
hv

iew Ct

Douglas
St

Edgewood St
Elm

wo
od

Av
e

Min
ne

so
ta 

St

Ho
lid

ay 
Rd

Theimer
St

Evergreen
Ln

Sands
Ave

Patterson
Ln

Jen
nif

er 
Ln

Green Ave

Tim
oth

y S
t

Redeker Dr Loma St

Sc
og

gin St

Greenhill
Cir

Westgate
Ave

WestwoodDr

S Park Rd

Cooley St12th St

29th St

Westview
St

Rosewood
Dr

Cadam Ct

Maple St

Parkway
Ave

Wo
od

rid
ge

Dr

Sta
te 

St

Be
lle 

Av
e

Bertchwood

Colorado

Lantz Ave

As
hla

nd
 Av

e

Mis
sou

ri S
t

Tomahawk
Ln

Minnehaha
Ln

McKinley St

Gib
so

n S
t

Cottonwood Ln

Ba
ker

 Dr

Fo
rre

st R
d

Pic
tur

esq
ue

Dr

Dako
ta S

t

Ca
lifo

rni
a S

t

Lindale Rd

Ste
wa

rt L
n

Hiawatha Rd

Cottage Row Ln

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

La
uri

nd
a

Dr

Co
lleg

e S
t

Ad
am

s S
t

Windsor Dr

Jac
lyn

 St

Ed
die

 St

Hic
ko

ry 
Ln

Bonita Blvd

Western Ave

Da
ina

 Dr

De
en

a D
r

Vin
e S

t

Ca
mb

rid
ge

 Av
e

Ste
rlin

g L
n

Cre
stv

iew
 Dr

Bir
ch

 St

Ga
s L

igh
t D

r

Pe
arl

 St

Ru
sse

ll D
r

Div
isio

n S
t

Po
cah

on
tas

 Rd

Fra
nc

is S
t

Edw
ard

s A
ve

Pleasant Dr

Hazelwood Ln

Butternut Ln

Re
dw

oo
d L

n

Hil
lcr

est
 Dr

Elm St

Or
ch

ard
 Hi

ll D
r

De
lta

 Dr

28th St

Newman Ave

Co
lum

bia Dr

Clair St

Oa
kla

nd 
Ave

9th St

10th St

Beech Ave

16th St

Ala
me

da
 St

Oh
io 

St

Ell
en

Longview St

We
dg

ew
oo

d D
r

5th St

Sunnyside Dr

Mc
Cla

in 
Dr

Va
lley

 Pa
rk 

Dr

Lake St

Madison St

Spruce

Ridgeway

Ln

Mo
rris

on
 Ln

Winter
Ridge Ln

Continental
Acc

Me
mo

ria
l

Av
e

Oak
St

Linden
St

Willow Ave

Thomas
St

Jor
dan

 St

RiverBluff Dr

Su
ma

c A
ve

Pin
e S

t

Higby Dr

Laurel
Cir

Co
lleg

e S
t

Fa
irv

iew
 Dr

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Valley High Dr

Primrose

Vir
gil

 St

Wisconsin St

Ne
ola

 St

Bergstrom Blvd

11th St

Me
rne

r A
ve

Ea
st 

St

DrDr

Dr

Ce
ntr

al A
ve

Five Seasons Blvd

Gr
ov

e S
t

Wi
llo

w L
n

Div
isio

n S
t

Big
 W

oo
ds

 Rd

Elmridge Dr

Campus St

S Court D
r

Sunset Blvd

Calumett Dr

Parker St

Pin Oak Dr

Cy
pre

ss 
Av

e

Da
llas

 Dr

Heritage Rd

Kn
oll

 Ri
dg

e D
r

Ea
stp

ark
 Rd

7th St

Greenhill Dr

Starview Dr

19th St

Bo
uld

er 
Dr

Vic
tor

y D
r

23rd St

Tuc
so

n D
r

20th St

22nd St

21st St

Independence St

Cla
rk 

     
     

     
    D

r

Carlton Dr

17th St

E Main St

Melrose Dr

15th St
14th St
13th St

Park Dr

Ra
il W

ay

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

Briarwood Dr

Oli
ve 

St

8th St

2nd St

Iow
a S

t

3rd St

Lilac Ln

Fra
nk

lin
 St

Cla
y S

t

Ro
wn

d S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Wa
lnu

t S
t

4th St

Ca
tal

pa 
Ln

Sp
ruc

e L
n

Bo
x E

lde
r L

n

Ha
ckb

err
y L

n

Parkway Ave | Ct

Woodland Ave
Glenwood Ave

Ga
rne

t Rd

Zircon Ln

Sc
hre

ibe
r

St

St

Ro
os

eve
lt S

t

6th St

5th St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

St

Pa
rk 

Dr
Ell

en
 St

20th St

Melrose Dr

Sta
te 

St

Gr
ov

e S
t

Edgewood Dr

Bicentennial
Dr

Valley High Dr

Cardinal

Ct

Ro
wn

d S
t

Valley High Dr

Carlton Dr

Greenhill DrHills Dr

Cy
pre

ss 
     

     
  A

ve Lake St

Western Ave

Grand Blvd

Bri
arw

oo
d D

r

Cle
arv

iew
 Dr

Maplewood Dr

Greenwood Ave

Madison St

Irving St

Acorn Ln

Ca
mp

us
 St

Ca
mp

us
 St

Pa
nth

er
Ln

E Main StBig
 W

oo
ds

 Rd

Lo
ga

n
St

Wa
sh

ing
ton

 St

Oli
ve 

St

Scenic
Dr

Pe
arl

 St

Cla
y S

t

St

Ca
the

rin
e S

t

Blu
ff S

t

Wa
lnu

t S
t

Tre
mo

nt 
St

Ca
me

o S
t

OakAve

Winter Ridge

Jam
es

Dr

Log an St

Dr

Ma
ryh

ill
Dr

SOakA ve

Lark Ln

Mauker

Dr

N C
ott

ag
e R

ow
 Rd

Da
llas Dr

Garden Ave

Ve
ral

ta 
Dr

Cle
arv

iew

Hil
lsid

e

La kesh oreD r

23rd St Hawthorne Dr

Ro
yal

Dr

Cottage Grv

Maple St Park Pl
Chestnut St

Pine St

Se awa rdDr

L innwo od Dr

Sunnyside Cir

Starb
eck 

Cir

Je nnings D r

Pri
dem

ore
 DrHomeway Dr

¡¢218

¡¢218

Cedar River

Cedar RiverAlice Wyth Lake

Fisher Lake

Big Wood Lake

Snag Creek

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k

Dry
 Ru

n C
ree

k (S
)

Dry Run Creek (Univ)

Shirey Lake

Mullens Pond
1st Slough

2nd Slough

Rd

Dr

Ca
llu

m C

t

Ve
ral

ta

Cadillac Dr
Terrace Dr

Oregon Rd

Conv
a ir

L n

Devlin
Cir

Latham Pl

Lovejoy Dr

Melendy LnStu
rgi

s D
r

SL
aw

n R
d

Bi c entennial Dr

McCl a
in D

r

Pleasant Dr

Terrace Dr

Su
nn

y L
n

Sha
dy

Ln

Park Cir

Ch
err

yL
n

E R idg
ew

oo
dD

r

W
Rid

ge
wo

od
Dr

Rese

rve Dr

TimberDr

Utility
Pkwy

Summit

Dr

B luf f St

P a
r k

D r

B ig Woods Creek

Mandala y Dr

Library Dr

Warp Dr

Spruce Creek DrSpruce
Needle Ln

ICity of Cedar Falls, Iowa

© City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The City of Cedar Falls does not guarantee the accuracy of the information contained on maps accessible on this site.  This information is provided for demonstration purposes only.  All warranties, express and implied, are hereby disclaimed.

Sewer Lining 2023
2/24/2023

K:\Projects\Citywide\Roads11x17.mxd

2023 Sanitary Sewer Lining

78

Item 4.



ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 Pipe Lining, 8 Inch L.F. $31.00 6147.0 $190,557.00

2 Building Sanitary Sewer Service Reconection EACH $325.00 99.0 $32,175.00

3 Grouting Service Laterals Each $75.00 99.0 $7,425.00

4 Mobilization L.S. $5,000.00 1.0 $5,000.00

$235,157.00TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

AND QUANTITIES

FEB 2023

2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation

Project
CITY PROJECT NO. RC - 000 - 3316

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS

79

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: February 27, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: 2023 Street Construction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3299 
  Public Hearing 
 
 

This project involves the construction of portions of two (2) city streets totaling 0.47 miles. 
The two streets are W 18th Street from Hudson Rd to Campus Street and Madison Street 
from Belle Avenue to Virgil Street. Work will include 8,778 SV. of pavement removal and 
replacement, subgrade preparation, 2,040 LF. of storm sewer, 27 new storm sewer 
intakes, 2655 LF. of water main replacement, water main services, 2,672 LF. of new 
subdrain, replacement of driveway approaches and pedestrian ramps, modifications to 
existing storm sewer intakes, and replacement of signage and striping.  
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $2,530,011.15. The project 
will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, Sanitary Sewer 
Rental Fund, and General Obligation Bond.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2023 Street 
Construction Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

80

Item 5.



ITEM # ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY TOTAL COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $30.00 514 $15,420.00

2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. $15.00 3278 $49,170.00

3 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION , CLASS 12, BOULDERS C.Y. $30.00 20 $600.00

4 2010-108-F-0 BELOW GRADE EXCAVATION (CORE OUT) C.Y. $15.00 200 $3,000.00

5 2010-108-G-0 SUBGRADE PREPARATION S.Y. $1.00 9834 $9,834.00

6 2010-108-H-0 SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID TENSAR TX-160 S.Y. $9.00 5663 $50,967.00

7 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 12 IN. S.Y. $20.00 9834 $196,680.00

8 3010-108-D-0 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TONS $32.00 2500 $80,000.00

9 4010-108-A-1 SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, PVC, 8 IN., TRUSS L.F. $60.00 331 $19,860.00

10 4010-108-E-1 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, TRENCHED, PVC, 4 IN., (SDR-23.5) L.F. $60.00 200 $12,000.00

11 4010-108-H-1 REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER L.F. $10.00 331 $3,310.00

12 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. HDPE L.F. $65.00 1267 $82,355.00

13 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. $90.00 158 $14,220.00

14 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. HDPE L.F. $75.00 109 $8,175.00

15 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 18 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. $100.00 118 $11,800.00

16 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. HDPE  L.F. $80.00 288 $23,040.00

17 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. $105.00 100 $10,500.00

18 4020-211 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH $500.00 1 $500.00

19 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN.(NON-SUBDRAIN) L.F. $10.00 1431 $14,310.00

20 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER (SUBDRAIN) L.F. $3.00 1930 $5,790.00

21 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. $12.00 2672 $32,064.00

22 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, OUTLET, 6 IN. C.M.P. EACH $275.00 15 $4,125.00

23 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, SUMP PUMP TAP EACH $350.00 56 $19,600.00

24 4040-108-A-0 FIELD TILE, 4 IN. TO 8 IN., FIELD REPAIR L.F. $20.00 20 $400.00

25 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 4" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. $70.00 20 $1,400.00

26 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 6" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. $75.00 60 $4,500.00

27 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 8" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. $80.00 2575 $206,000.00

28 5010-108-C-2 FITTINGS, DUCTILE IRON LBS. $12.00 6300 $75,600.00

29 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 3/4" EACH $1,900.00 26 $49,400.00

30 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE, LONGSIDE, 3/4" EACH $2,750.00 28 $77,000.00

31 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 4" EACH $150.00 10 $1,500.00

32 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 6" EACH $175.00 25 $4,375.00

33 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 8" EACH $185.00 52 $9,620.00

34 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 4" EACH $160.00 1 $160.00

35 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 8" EACH $180.00 39 $7,020.00

36 5010-XX-3 8" NITRILE GASKETS EACH $170.00 43 $7,310.00

37 5020-108-A-0 VALVE, 8" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH $2,500.00 13 $32,500.00

38 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH $5,500.00 9 $49,500.00

39 5020-108-E-0 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EACH $600.00 2 $1,200.00

40 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EACH $1,300.00 5 $6,500.00

41 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48" DIA. EACH $4,600.00 6 $27,600.00

42 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48" DIA. EACH $7,000.00 5 $35,000.00

43 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH $6,500.00 4 $26,000.00

44 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH $8,000.00 10 $80,000.00

45 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE B EACH $6,500.00 1 $6,500.00

46 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE D EACH $8,000.00 11 $88,000.00

47 6010-108-F-0 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR (CFD.07, "MR. MANHOLE") EACH $3,000.00 4 $12,000.00

48 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH $750.00 18 $13,500.00

49 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF SANITARY MANHOLES EACH $1,200.00 5 $6,000.00

50 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 7 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $52.00 2640 $137,280.00

51 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 8 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $55.00 6138 $337,590.00

52 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. $10.00 922 $9,220.00

53 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $10.00 34 $340.00

54 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $65.00 29 $1,885.00

55 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $100.00 5 $500.00

56 7030-108-G-0 DETECTABLE WARNINGS S.F. $51.00 8 $408.00

57 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. $60.00 922 $55,320.00

58 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE TONS $30.00 40 $1,200.00

59 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. $300.00 20 $6,000.00

60 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, PCC S.Y. $9.00 8778 $79,002.00

61 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, ACC S.Y. $9.00 8778 $79,002.00

62 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. $90.00 27 $2,430.00

63 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH $80.00 7 $560.00

64 8020-XX-1 STREET SIGNS (SIGNS, POST, & RECIEVER) EACH $350.00 28 $9,800.00

65 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $50,000.00 1 $50,000.00

66 9020-108-A-0 SOD S.F. $0.90 27761 $24,984.90

67 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. $2.25 4867 $10,950.75

68 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. $0.50 4867 $2,433.50

69 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH $150.00 26 $3,900.00

70 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH $50.00 26 $1,300.00

71 10010-108-A-3 DEMOLITION OF BUILDING STRUCTURES (STAIRS) L.S. $5,000.00 1 $5,000.00

72 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. $200,000.00 1 $200,000.00

73 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS $15,000.00 1 $15,000.00

TOTAL STREET RECONSTRUCTION $1,961,256.15

TOTAL SANITARY SEWER RECONSTRUCTION $35,170.00

TOTAL WATERMAIN REPLACEMENT $533,585.00

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE $2,530,011.15

2023 STREET CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NUMBER RC-000-3230

FINAL ESTIMATE OF COSTS & QUANTITIES

81

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: February 27, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1 
  City Project Number: RC-092-3271 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 

This project will reconstruct Timber Drive from Grand Avenue to Greenwood Avenue and 
West Ridgewood Drive from (and including part of) Greenwood Avenue to Cherry Lane. 
Work includes reconstruction of water main, storm and sanitary sewers, slope repairs, 
installation of new 8” subdrain, asphalt pavement with concrete curb and/or edging, and 
concrete intersections. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $3,964,626.38. The project 
will be funded by Local Option Sales Tax, Street Construction Fund, Sanitary Sewer 
Rental Fund, and General Obligation Bond.  
 

The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the North Cedar Heights 
Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

82

Item 6.



 Engineer's 

Estimate  

Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Total Unit Price Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Total

1 2010-108A CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNIT 249.6 44 293.6 150.00$             37,440.00$             -$                    -$                    6,600.00$          44,040.00$                   

2 2010-108B CLEARING AND GRUBBING AC 0.46 0.01 0.47 60,000.00$        27,600.00$             -$                    -$                    600.00$             28,200.00$                   

3 2010-108B GRUBBING (BY AREA) AC 1 1 30,000.00$        30,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    30,000.00$                   

4 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED CY 656 75 731 30.00$               19,680.00$             -$                    -$                    2,250.00$          21,930.00$                   

5 2010-108D TOPSOIL, CONTRACTOR PROVIDED, SLOPE REPAIR CY 1050 1050 28.00$               29,400.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    29,400.00$                   

6 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE CY 3249 152 3401 20.00$               64,980.00$             -$                    -$                    3,040.00$          68,020.00$                   

7 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 4395 4395 12.00$               52,740.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    52,740.00$                   

8 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, BORROW,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 7978 7978 20.00$               159,560.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    159,560.00$                 

9 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, WASTE,  SLOPE REPAIR CY 1565 1565 20.00$               31,300.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    31,300.00$                   

10 2010-108E EXCAVATION, CLASS 13 CY 10 10 45.00$               450.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    450.00$                         

11 2010-108G SUBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. SY 6913 444 7357 2.50$                 17,282.50$             -$                    -$                    1,110.00$          18,392.50$                   

12 2010-108I SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID SY 100 100 8.00$                 800.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    800.00$                         

13 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 6 IN. SY 518.3 518.3 23.00$               11,920.90$             -$                    -$                    -$                    11,920.90$                   

14 2010-108J SUBBASE, MODIFIED 12 IN. SY 6913 444 7357 17.00$               117,521.00$           -$                    -$                    7,548.00$          125,069.00$                 

15 2010-108K REMOVALS, SIGN STRUCTURE EACH 1 1 200.00$             200.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    200.00$                         

16 2010-108M COMPACTION TESTING LS 1 1 100,000.00$      100,000.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    100,000.00$                 

17 3010-108D REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TON 100 100 30.00$               3,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

18 4010-108A

SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, POLYVINYL 

CHLORIDE PIPE (PVC), 8 IN. LF 1839 77 1916 90.00$               -$                        -$                    165,510.00$      6,930.00$          172,440.00$                 

19 4010-108C

SANITARY SEWER FORCE MAIN, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 

POLY WRAPPED, 8 IN. LF 755 755 120.00$             -$                        -$                    90,600.00$        -$                    90,600.00$                   

20 4010-108E SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LF 440 10 450 130.00$             -$                        -$                    57,200.00$        1,300.00$          58,500.00$                   

21 4010-108 SANITARY SEWER PIPE INSULATION LF 104 104 35.00$               -$                        -$                    3,640.00$          -$                    3,640.00$                     

22 4010-108H REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER LF 2037 301 2338 15.00$               30,555.00$             -$                    -$                    4,515.00$          35,070.00$                   

23 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 15 IN. LF 584 584 100.00$             58,400.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    58,400.00$                   

24 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 18 IN. LF 401 401 100.00$             40,100.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    40,100.00$                   

25 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 24 IN. LF 128 128 120.00$             15,360.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    15,360.00$                   

26 4020-108A STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 30 IN. LF 122 122 130.00$             15,860.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    15,860.00$                   

27 4020-108D REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER, RCP, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 334 334 20.00$               6,680.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    6,680.00$                     

28 4030-108B 18" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1 1 1,600.00$          1,600.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,600.00$                     

29 4030-108B 24" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 4 4 1,750.00$          7,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    7,000.00$                     

30 4030-108B 30" RCP APRON 4030.222 EACH 1 1 2,250.00$          2,250.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,250.00$                     

31 4030-108C RCP APRON FOOTINGS 4030.221 EACH 6 6 2,000.00$          12,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    12,000.00$                   

32 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED PLASTIC PIPE, TYPE SP, 8 IN. DIA. LF 3946 174.7 4120.7 20.00$               78,920.00$             -$                    -$                    3,494.00$          82,414.00$                   

33 4040-108A SUBDRAIN, 6 IN. DIA. DR-303, TYPE 11 LF 995.7 995.7 15.00$               14,935.50$             -$                    -$                    -$                    14,935.50$                   

34 CFD.01 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, CFD.01 EACH 31 1 32 650.00$             20,150.00$             -$                    -$                    650.00$             20,800.00$                   

35 4040-108D SUBDRAIN OUTLETS, 4040.233 EACH 1 1 650.00$             650.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    650.00$                         

36 4040-108E SUBDRAIN TAP, 6" EACH 24 2 26 600.00$             14,400.00$             -$                    -$                    1,200.00$          15,600.00$                   

37 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 8 IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 2777.3 2777.3 130.00$             -$                        361,049.00$       -$                    -$                    361,049.00$                 

38 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 6IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 5 5 120.00$             -$                        600.00$              -$                    -$                    600.00$                         

39 5010-108A

WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 4IN, 

POLY WRAPPED, NITRILE GASKETS, INTEGRAL RESTRAINED 

JOINTS LF 56.9 56.9 130.00$             -$                        7,397.00$           -$                    -$                    7,397.00$                     

40 5010-108C FITTINGS BY WEIGHT, DUCTILE IRON LBS 6343.4 709.8 7053.2 30.00$               -$                        190,302.00$       21,294.00$        -$                    211,596.00$                 

41 5010-108D WATER SERVICE EACH 547 547 110.00$             -$                        60,170.00$         -$                    -$                    60,170.00$                   

42 5010-108F WATERMAIN ABANDONMENT, CAP EACH 19 19 1,300.00$          -$                        24,700.00$         -$                    -$                    24,700.00$                   

43 5010-108H WATERMAIN REMOVAL LF 120 120 25.00$               -$                        3,000.00$           -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

44 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 4 IN EACH 1 1 3,000.00$          -$                        3,000.00$           -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

45 5020-108A VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN EACH 11 11 3,250.00$          -$                        35,750.00$         -$                    -$                    35,750.00$                   

46 5020-108C FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 8 8 9,500.00$          -$                        76,000.00$         -$                    -$                    76,000.00$                   

47 5020-108J HYDRANT ASSEMBLY, REMOVAL EA 9 9 1,500.00$          -$                        13,500.00$         -$                    -$                    13,500.00$                   

48 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 48 IN. EACH 14 2 16 6,500.00$          -$                        -$                    91,000.00$        13,000.00$        104,000.00$                 

49 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 60 IN. EACH 4 1 5 8,000.00$          -$                        -$                    32,000.00$        8,000.00$          40,000.00$                   

50 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.301, 72 IN. EACH 1 1 9,000.00$          -$                        -$                    9,000.00$          -$                    9,000.00$                     

51 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 48 IN. EACH 4 4 6,500.00$          26,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    26,000.00$                   

52 6010-108A MANHOLE, 6010.401, 60 IN. EACH 1 1 7,000.00$          7,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    7,000.00$                     

53 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 60 IN. EACH 1 1 10,250.00$        10,250.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    10,250.00$                   

54 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.502, 72 IN. EACH 1 1 11,000.00$        11,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    11,000.00$                   

55 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.505 EACH 13 13 8,500.00$          110,500.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    110,500.00$                 

56 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.510 EACH 1 1 12,000.00$        12,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    12,000.00$                   

57 6010-108B INTAKE, 6010.513 EACH 2 2 9,000.00$          18,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    18,000.00$                   

58 6010-108C DROP CONNECTION SANITARY SEWER, 8 IN., EXTERNAL EACH 3 3 7,200.00$          -$                        -$                    21,600.00$        -$                    21,600.00$                   

59 6010-108H REMOVALS, MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 2 14 2 18 1,250.00$          2,500.00$               -$                    17,500.00$        2,500.00$          22,500.00$                   

60 7010-108A PCC PAVEMENT, CLASS C-4, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 7 IN. SY 581 581 75.00$               43,575.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    43,575.00$                   

61 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, SLOPED, 4 IN. LF 2854 174 5200 50.00$               260,000.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    260,000.00$                 

62 7010-108E CURB AND GUTTER, DROPPED, 0 IN. LF 2193 174 2367 50.00$               109,650.00$           -$                    -$                    8,700.00$          118,350.00$                 

63 2304-0101000 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, 6" PCC SY 232.5 232.5 60.00$               13,950.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    13,950.00$                   

64 7020-108B 7" HMA ST SY 3612.1 233 3845.1 80.00$               288,968.00$           -$                    -$                    18,640.00$        307,608.00$                 

65 7030-108A REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY SY 518.3 14 532.3 9.00$                 4,664.70$               -$                    -$                    126.00$             4,790.70$                     

66 7030-108H DRIVEWAYS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 518.3 14 532.3 51.00$               26,433.30$             -$                    -$                    714.00$             27,147.30$                   

67 7030-108H CLASS A ROADSTONE TON 21.4 21.4 42.00$               898.80$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    898.80$                         

68 7040-108H REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 5640.6 306.3 5946.9 8.00$                 45,124.80$             -$                    -$                    2,450.40$          47,575.20$                   

69 2505-4008120 REMOVAL OF GUARDRAIL LF 76 76 10.00$               760.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    760.00$                         

70 8030-108A TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 1 25,000.00$        25,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    25,000.00$                   

71 2401-6745765 LIGHT POLES, REMOVE EACH 2 2 650.00$             1,300.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,300.00$                     

72 2523-0000100

LIGHT POLES, 28' METAL POLE W/ DIRECT BURIED AND 6' 

MAST ARM EACH 3 3 6,000.00$          18,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    18,000.00$                   

73 2523-0000200 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 50 50 15.00$               750.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    750.00$                         

74 2528-2518000 SAFETY CLOSURE EACH 19 2 21 100.00$             1,900.00$               -$                    -$                    200.00$             2,100.00$                     

75 8040-108B TYPE A SIGNS, SHEET ALUMINUM SF 82.7 82.7 25.00$               2,067.50$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,067.50$                     

76 8040-108D PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE POSTS LF 110 110 30.00$               3,300.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,300.00$                     

77 8040-108G PERFORATED SQUARE STEEL TUBE ANCHOR EACH 11 11 40.00$               440.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    440.00$                         

78 8040-108I REMOVE & REINSTALL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 8 8 300.00$             2,400.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,400.00$                     

79 2524-6765210 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 4 4 200.00$             800.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    800.00$                         

80 9010-108D WATERING MGAL 100 100 160.00$             16,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    16,000.00$                   

81 9010-108B

SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRO-

SEEDING, TYPE 4 ACRE 1.2 1.2 10,000.00$        12,000.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    12,000.00$                   

82 9010-108B

SEEDING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING, 

WILDFLOWER SEED ACRE 1.5 0.1 1.6 10,000.00$        15,000.00$             -$                    -$                    1,000.00$          16,000.00$                   

83 9020-108A SOD SQ 179 29 208 75.00$               13,425.00$             -$                    -$                    2,175.00$          15,600.00$                   

84 9040-108E TEMPORARY RECP, TYPE 3B SY 6204 96 6300 4.00$                 24,816.00$             -$                    -$                    384.00$             25,200.00$                   

85 9040-108F PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. LF 4928 302 5230 2.00$                 9,856.00$               -$                    -$                    604.00$             10,460.00$                   

86 9040-108F

REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT 

CONTROL DEVICE LF 4928 302 5230 0.65$                 3,203.20$               -$                    -$                    196.30$             3,399.50$                     

87 9040-108J

REVETMENT, CLASS E RIP RAP APRON (& ENG.

FABRIC) FOR PIPE OUTLET, 9040.111 TON 230 230 45.00$               10,350.00$             -$                    -$                    -$                    10,350.00$                   

88 9040-108N SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, INSTALLATION LF 1075 1075 2.25$                 2,418.75$               -$                    -$                    -$                    2,418.75$                     

89 9040-108N

SILT FENCE OR SILT FENCE DITCH CHECK, REMOVAL OF 

DEVICE LF 1075 1075 1.00$                 1,075.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,075.00$                     

90 9040-108O CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE SY 55 55 70.00$               3,850.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,850.00$                     

91 9040-108R TURF REINFORCEMENT MATTING (TYPE 2) SQ 4 4 70.00$               280.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    280.00$                         

92 9040-108T

INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN.

12 IN EACH 13 13 85.00$               1,105.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,105.00$                     

93 9040-108T

MAINTENANCE OF INTAKE PROTECTION, SEDIMENT 

CONTROL DEVICE

CONTROL DEVICE EACH 13 13 20.00$               260.00$                  -$                    -$                    -$                    260.00$                         

94 9070 REMOVAL OF EXISTING LANDSCAPING LS 1 1 2 5,000.00$          5,000.00$               -$                    -$                    5,000.00$          10,000.00$                   

95 9070 REMOVE AND REINSTALL RETAINING WALL, AS PER PLAN LS 1 1 3,000.00$          3,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

96 2602-0000500 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER LF 8 8 10.00$               80.00$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    80.00$                           

UnitItem Description Item CodeItem No.

Engineer's Estimate of Costs
North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project

Cedar Falls Project No.: RC-092-3271

AECOM Project No.: 60672593

2/3/2023

 Estimated Quantities  Estimated Costs 

83

Item 6.



97 2602-0000510

MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE 

SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 1 1 20.00$               20.00$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    20.00$                           

98 2602-0000520

REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT 

FILTER EACH 1 1 20.00$               20.00$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    20.00$                           

99 2602-0000530 GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 28 28 135.00$             3,780.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,780.00$                     

100 2602-0000540 MAINTENANCE OF GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 28 28 40.00$               1,120.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,120.00$                     

101 2602-0000550 REMOVAL OR GRATE INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER BAG EA 28 28 40.00$               1,120.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    1,120.00$                     

102 11020-108A MOBILIZATION LS 1 1 150,000.00$      150,000.00$           -$                    -$                    -$                    150,000.00$                 

103 11030 -108A MAILBOX, REMOVE AND REINSTALL EA 29 29 200.00$             5,800.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    5,800.00$                     

104 11050-108A CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 1 3,000.00$          3,000.00$               -$                    -$                    -$                    3,000.00$                     

ALTERNATE #1 Bid Items -$                    

105 4010-108A SANITARY SEWER GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHLESS, PVC, 8 IN. LF 206 206 150.00$             -$                        -$                    -$                    30,900.00$        30,900.00$                   

106 4010-108I SANITARY SEWER CLEAN OUT EACH 1 1 650.00$             -$                        -$                    -$                    650.00$             650.00$                         

Division 1- Roadway Division 1 Division 2 Division 3 Division 4 Total

Division 2 - CFU Water Main 2,356,545.95$        775,468.00$       509,344.00$      134,476.70$      3,775,834.65$              

Division 3 - Sanitary Sewer

Division 4 - Alternate #1 Contingency (5%) 188,791.73$                 

Engineer's Estimate of Construction Costs 3,830,149.68$              

Engineer's Estimate of Construction Costs (w-Alt #1) 3,964,626.38$              

84

Item 6.



  
 
 
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

February 20, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 5:15 p.m. on February 20, 2023, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon 
Harding, Daryl Kruse (via telephone), Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff members 
from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Finance & Business 
Operations Committee Agenda, City Council Email System Discussion and introduced the 
Information Systems Manager, Julie Sorensen. Ms. Sorensen gave an overview of the challenges 
that started July 2022 – current with personnel email use. Ms. Sorensen advised the best practice 
would be for the use of cedarfalls.com emails to be used in order to protect the city’s data. 
Councilmembers discussed the removal of email on website, transfer to cedarfalls.com email, and 
automatic reply message on previous email. It was motioned by Harding and seconded by Schultz to 
implement to the cedarfalls.com email starting immediately. The motion was put to vote. Aye: Dunn, 
Harding, Ganfield and Shultz; Nay: deBuhr, Kruse and Sires. Motion passed. 
 
Public Safety Committee: 
Chair Ganfield called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Public Safety 
Committee Agenda, Committee to draft request for proposal (RFP) for assessment of the Public 
Safety Department. Chair Ganfield asked committee members to write down intentions of the 
meeting, how do you want to listen and how do you want to be heard. Chair Ganfield clarified the 
purpose of tonight’s meeting. Chair Ganfield explained an RFP is a document that we send out that 
defines the project, scope, and budget; it should provide background and introductory information. It 
should describe the services we are looking for from this entity. We should provide detail of our 
selection criteria and timelines. Chair Ganfield stated items to be included in the RFP were gathered 
from Craig Berte, Public Safety Director. Director Berte gave suggested items that may be included 
from the Public Safety Strategic Plan that include: Achieve Optimal Staffing; Improve Departmental 
Practices; Train and Certify Comprehensively; Effectively Manage Department Facilities; Field New 
Equipment and Vehicles; Creatively Engage the Community and Support Officer Well-being. 
Committee members discussed outside agency review, ISO rating, more information on goal 5 (Field 
New Equipment and Vehicles) and goal 6 (Creatively Engage Community), review of 24/8.25 hour 
shifts, cost of RFP, what will the third party assess, scope of work, how can we be the best PSO 
program, partnerships with UNI, why does Public Safety have chiefs, bidding of positions within  the 
fire and police departments, number of police and fire employees, discuss RFP with employees on 
what to include, employee turnover, emergency medical service, accreditation certificate, outside 
review necessary, and if/when the 2021 Special Report will be updated. Chair Ganfield called for 
public comment. Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, concerned with recent personnel 
investigations. Linda Minikus, 1626 West Lone Tree Road, concerns with a recent article regarding 
an employee and expressed interest in having future goals for Public Safety in the upcoming Public 
Safety Special Report. It was motioned by deBuhr and seconded by Dunn to have Public Safety 
provide an update on the Public Safety Special Report, with how Public Safety is preforming on the 
mentioned Strategic Plan goals by August 15, 2023. The motion was put to vote. Aye: deBuhr, 
Dunn, Ganfield, Kruse and Shultz; Nay: Harding and Sires. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 6:49 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, CMC, Administrative Supervisor 

85

Item 7.



   ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 M E M O R A N D U M 
Office of the Mayor 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council  

 DATE: February 28, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Proclamation Requests 

 REF: (a) CFD 1117.22: Council Policy – Official City Proclamations 

 

1. In accordance with reference (a), I am enclosing the following proclamation 

request(s) for Council consideration and approval:  

a. Women’s History Month – March 2023 

2. Please contact me with any questions.  

  

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Communications Specialist 

### 

 

86

Item 8.



 

CITY COUNCIL AND MAYOR 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 
  

 
 
                                    WHEREAS, women of every race, class and ethnic background have made historic 
contributions to the growth and strength of Cedar Falls in countless ways; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Cedar Falls encourages and promotes strong and inclusive communities that 
recognize and celebrate efforts to bring people together for a greater good and highlight the many 
threads in our fabric that make it strong and whole and women play a critical economic, cultural and 
social role in every sphere of life in Cedar Falls; and 

WHEREAS, Women’s History Month has its origins as a national celebration in 1981, when Congress 

authorized and requested the President to proclaim the week beginning March 7, 1982 as “Women’s 

History Week” and later, designation by Congress of March 1987 as “Women’s History Month”; 

WHEREAS, The National Women’s History Alliance has designated this year’s theme as “Celebrating 

Women Who Tell Our Stories” to encourage the recognition of women who have been active in all forms 

of media and storytelling and who have devoted their lives and talents to producing art and news, 

pursuing truth and reflecting society decade after decade; and 

WHEREAS, women have been leaders, not only in securing their own rights of suffrage and equal 

opportunity, but also in the abolitionist, emancipation, industrial labor, civil rights, and peace 

movements, which have created a more fair and just society for all; and 

WHEREAS, despite these contributions, the role of women has consistently been overlooked and 

undervalued in the literature, leadership, teaching and study of American history and it is therefore 

fitting that we recognize their numerous accomplishments; 

NOW, THEREFORE I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, acting in the name of the Cedar Falls City 

Council, do hereby proclaim March 2023 as  

 

 

in the City of Cedar Falls, and I encourage all citizens to learn about and appreciate the rich history of 

many dynamic women leaders, community servants, entrepreneurs, business professionals, educators, 

and others who have made their influence felt and constructed the path for the city we are today. 

        Signed this 6th day of March, 2023. 

 

______________________________________                                                                                 
MAYOR ROBERT M.  GRE EN  

WOMEN’S HISTORY MONTH 

 

87

Item 8.



February 26, 2023 
  
  
Dear Mayor Green and Commissioners, 
I am resigning from the Cedar Falls Human Rights Commission as of March 31, 2023. I do this regretfully. 
 
I thought I could finish my terms, and I have found that my work as the District Coordinator for the Tax 
Aide program is far more time consuming than I expected. I do love the work, and I want to give it more 
of my time and attention, even as tax season ends. There are volunteers to recruit, training sessions to 
develop, public relations work to do, and my own tax preparation knowledge base to expand. 
 
I am very excited about the direction, energy level, and leadership the HRC has now. Good things are 
happening and I plan to keep tabs on the work. I expect to drop in on the occasional meeting, as time 
allows.  
 
Mayor Green, I very, very much appreciate the support you’ve provided the Commission during your 
term. I wish you, and everyone involved with the Commission the very best. 
 
Sincerely, 
  

Melissa L Heston 

Melissa L Heston 
 

88

Item 9.



89

Item 10.



90

Item 10.



91

Item 10.



92

Item 10.



93

Item 10.



94

Item 10.



95

Item 10.



96

Item 10.



97

Item 10.



98

Item 10.



99

Item 10.



100

Item 10.



101

Item 10.



102

Item 10.



103

Item 10.



104

Item 10.



105

Item 10.



106

Item 10.



107

Item 10.



108

Item 10.



109

Item 10.



110

Item 10.



111

Item 10.



112

Item 10.



113

Item 10.



114

Item 10.



115

Item 10.



116

Item 10.



117

Item 10.



118

Item 10.



119

Item 10.



120

Item 10.



121

Item 11.



122

Item 11.



123

Item 11.



124

Item 11.



125

Item 11.



126

Item 11.



127

Item 11.



128

Item 11.



129

Item 11.



130

Item 11.



131

Item 11.



BEFORE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY COUNCIL 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IN RE:       ORDER ACCEPTING 

Bani’s       ACKNOWLEDGMENT/ 

c/o Cedar Star, Inc.     SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 

2128 College Street     SECOND VIOLATION 

Cedar Falls, IA  50613    (Assessment of Civil Penalty) 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 ON this ______ day of _______________, 2023, in lieu of a public hearing on the 

matter, the Cedar Falls City Council approves the attached Acknowledgment/ Settlement 

Agreement between the above-captioned permittee and the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

 Pursuant to the Agreement, IT IS THERFORE ORDERED that a civil penalty of 

One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($1,500.00 be assessed against the above-captioned 

permittee.  This sanction will count as a second violation of Iowa Code Section 

453A.2(1), pursuant to Iowa Code Section 453A.22(2)(b). 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 

      City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 

 

132

Item 12.



133

Item 12.



134

Item 12.



135

Item 12.



136

Item 12.



137

Item 12.



138

Item 12.



139

Item 13.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  February 27, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no records that would 
prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Hatchlings & Hens, 109 Main Street, Special Class B retail native wine – renewal. 

b) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C retail alcohol – renewal. 

c) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
renewal. 

d) Hillstreet News & Tobacco, 2217 College Street, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

e) Bani's, 2128 College Street, Class E retail alcohol – new – change in ownership. 

 

140

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

Information Systems Division 
 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Julie Sorensen, Information Systems Manager 

 DATE: February 24, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Apple Device Enrollment Program Facilitation Agreement 

 

Please see the attached Apple Device Enrollment Program Agreement.  This needs to be in place for US 
Cellular to exchange information about our devices and account information with Apple.  This exchange 
of information is needed to utilize our new Mobile Device Management system, InTune.   
 
Our cyber security assessment strongly encouraged us to start using Intune once our M365 migration 
was complete.  We are in the process of creating policies that will secure our network and data which 
may be utilized on mobile devices.  The first step is to enroll the devices so that the policies can be 
implemented.       
 
I’ve enclosed the Apple Device Enrollment Program Facilitation Agreement provided by US Cellular.   
Kevin Rogers has reviewed and does have concerns with the limited liability and breach.  However, 
because this is for administrative function of registering these devices once and the only failure would 
be not having a device missed and not registered, we are willing to accept this risk.  The registration 
process can be done manually in that case.   
 
Please reach out to me with any questions at 319-268-5111 or email at Julie.sorensen@cedarfalls.com.  
 
Julie Sorensen 
Manager of Information Systems 
 
Attachments: 
Apple Device Enrollment Program Agreement 

141

Item 16.



APPLE DEVICE ENROLLMENT PROGRAM FACILITATION AGREEMENT 

 

 

This Apple Device Enrollment Program Facilitation Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of this 

Februnay_ day of ___07____, 20_23_ (the “Effective Date”), and is made by and between USCC 

Distribution Co.  LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“USCC”) and_City of Cedar Falls 

(“Customer”). USCC and Customer may be hereinafter referred to each as a “Party” and collectively as 

the “Parties”. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Customer is a qualified participant in the Apple DEP (as defined below), and  

 

WHEREAS, Customer desires USCC to provide, and USCC is willing to provide to Customer, certain 

services to facilitate the enrollment of Apple Devices in the Apple DEP.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is 

hereby acknowledged by each of the Parties, Customer and USCC hereby agree as follows: 

 

 

1.   Definitions. 

“Apple” means Apple, Inc. 

“Apple DEP” means the Apple Device Enrollment Program for mobile device management. 

“Apple Device” means an Apple branded product that is owned or controlled by Customer, that has 

been purchased by Customer from USCC or from a USCC authorized reseller who obtained the 

product from USCC, and that is eligible for use in the Apple DEP. 

“Service” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2. 

“USCC Affiliate” means: (a) each entity that USCC’s parent company United States Cellular 

Corporation (“U.S. Cellular Corp.”) directly or indirectly owns or controls; (b) each entity which is 

an FCC licensee and: (i) with which U.S. Cellular Corp. directly or indirectly has a management 

agreement; or (ii) in which U.S. Cellular Corp. directly or indirectly is a general partner; and (c) U.S. 

Cellular Corp.’s parent company Telephone and Data Systems, Inc. and each entity, other than U.S. 

Cellular Corp., that Telephone and Data Systems, Inc. directly or indirectly owns or controls.  As 

used herein, “control” means the power to direct the management or affairs of an entity, and 

“ownership” means the beneficial ownership of more than 50% of the voting equity securities or other 

equivalent voting interests of an entity. 

2.   Service.  USCC agrees to facilitate Customer’s enrollment of Apple Devices into the Apple DEP (the 

“Service”). The Service shall exclusively consist of submitting to Apple certain information required 

by Apple for enrolling Apple Devices into the Apple DEP. The Service does not include managing 

Apple Devices enrolled, or removing Apple Devices from enrollment, in the Apple DEP. Customer 

agrees and acknowledges that Apple is solely and exclusively responsible for the Apple DEP and that 

USCC has no support, management, maintenance or other responsibilities with respect to the Apple 

DEP. 

3.   Customer Obligations. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BC75CD6-9982-4006-8D9E-8647E2992992

142

Item 16.



 

 

 2 

 

a. To receive the Service, Customer must (i) register and remain in good standing with the Apple 

DEP, and (ii) register the Apple Devices that it seeks to enroll in the Apple DEP by providing to 

USCC the information requested by USCC including, without limitation, Customer’s Apple DEP ID 

(collectively, the “DEP Information”), and fulfilling any other USCC requirements therefor. By 

providing any DEP Information to USCC, Customer authorizes USCC to provide the Service and 

convey such information to Apple. Customer agrees and acknowledges that DEP information 

provided by USCC to Apple is subject to Apples’s relevant privacy policy.  

b. Customer shall ensure that all DEP Information is true and correct at the time it is provided to 

USCC. Customer must immediately notify USCC in writing if it ceases to be enrolled in the Apple 

DEP, ceases to have an Apple DEP ID, if an Apple Device no longer is enrolled in the Apple DEP or 

if any of the DEP Information is inaccurate or no longer current. 

c.  Customer shall be responsible for all costs, expenses, losses, and liabilities incurred  and activities 

taken on behalf of Customer in connection with the Service or the Apple DEP. 

d. Customer shall be responsible for obtaining all rights and consents needed from end users to 

deploy and manage Apple Devices and to provide the DEP Information to Apple.  

4.   Termination. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL COMMENCE AS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE AND 

CONTINUE UNTIL TERMINATED AS PROVIDED IN THIS SECTION 4. USCC MAY 

SUSPEND OR TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT AND THE SERVICE AT ANY TIME, 

WITHOUT NOTICE, IF (I) CUSTOMER FAILS, OR IF USCC SUSPECTS THAT CUSTOMER 

HAS FAILED, TO COMPLY WITH ANY PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TERMS 

OF ANY OTHER AGREEMENT BETWEEN USCC OR A USCC AFFILIATE AND CUSTOMER, 

(II) APPLE TERMINATES USCC’S RIGHT, OR USCC IS OTHERWISE UNABLE, TO 

PROVIDE THE SERVICE, OR (III) USCC DECIDES IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION TO CEASE 

PROVIDING THE SERVICE. CUSTOMER MAY TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT FOR 

CONVENIENCE AT ANY TIME BY PROVIDING USCC AT LEAST THIRTY (30) DAYS 

ADVANCE WRITTEN NOTICE OF TERMINATION. 

5.   Indemnification. To the extent permitted by applicable law, Customer agrees to indemnify and hold 

harmless USCC and USCC Affiliates, and upon USCC’s request, defend USCC and USCC Affiliates, 

their directors, officers, employees, independent contractors and authorized representatives (USCC  

and each of the foregoing, a “USCC Indemnified Entity”) from any and all claims, losses, liabilities, 

damages, expenses and costs, including, without limitation attorney’s fees and court costs (“Losses”) 

incurred by a USCC Indemnified Entity and arising from or related to any of the following: (i) 

Customer’s breach of any certification, covenant, obligation, representation or warranty made in this 

Agreement, or (ii) any claims, including but not restricted to, any end user claims, about Customer’s 

use of the Service or participation in the Apple DEP, or the deployment or management of Apple 

Devices. In no event may Customer enter into any settlement or like agreement with a third party that 

affects the rights of or binds a USCC Indemnified Entity in any way, without the prior written consent 

of USCC.  

6.   Disclaimer of Warranties. 

CUSTOMER EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT, TO THE EXTENT 

PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, CUSTOMER’S USE OF, OR INABILITY TO USE, THE 

SERVICE, IS AT THE CUSTOMER’S SOLE RISK, AND THAT THE ENTIRE RISK AS TO 

SATISFACTORY QUALITY, PERFORMANCE, ACCURACY AND EFFORT IS WITH CUSTOMER. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BC75CD6-9982-4006-8D9E-8647E2992992

143

Item 16.



 

 

 3 

 

TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE SERVICE IS 

PROVIDED “AS IS” AND “AS AVAILABLE” WITH ALL FAULTS AND WITHOUT WARRANTY 

OF ANY KIND, AND USCC, USCC AFFILIATES, AND THEIR DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, 

EMPLOYEES, AFFILIATES, AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES, CONTRACTORS AND 

LICENSORS (COLLECTIVELY REFERRED TO AS “USCC” FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS 

SECTION 6 (DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES) AND SECTION 7 (LIMITATION OF LIABILITY)) 

HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE 

SERVICE, EITHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING BUT NOT RESTRICTED 

TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES AND/OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY, 

SATISFACTORY QUALITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ACCURACY, QUIET 

ENJOYMENT, TITLE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS. 

USCC DOES NOT GUARANTEE, REPRESENT OR WARRANT AGAINST 

INTERFERENCE WITH CUSTOMER’S USE OR ENJOYMENT OF THE SERVICE, THAT THE 

FUNCTIONS CONTAINED IN, OR SERVICE PERFORMED OR PROVIDED HEREUNDER WILL 

MEET CUSTOMER’S REQUIREMENTS, WILL BE SECURE, THAT CUSTOMER’S USE OF OR 

THAT THE OPERATION OF THE SERVICE WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE, 

THAT DEFECTS OR ERRORS WILL BE CORRECTED, THAT THE SERVICE WILL CONTINUE 

TO BE MADE AVAILABLE, THAT THE SERVICE WILL BE COMPATIBLE OR WORK WITH 

ANY THIRD PARTY SOFTWARE, APPLICATIONS OR THIRD PARTY SERVICES OR ANY 

OTHER USCC OR APPLE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES, OR THAT ANY DATA OR INFORMATION 

STORED OR TRANSMITTED THROUGH THE SERVICE WILL NOT BE LOST, CORRUPTED, 

DAMAGED, ATTACKED, HACKED, INTERFERED WITH OR SUBJECT TO ANY OTHER 

SECURITY INTRUSION. CUSTOMER AGREES THAT FROM TIME TO TIME USCC MAY 

REMOVE THE SERVICE FOR INDEFINITE PERIODS OF TIME, OR CANCEL THE SERVICE AT 

ANY TIME, WITHOUT NOTICE TO CUSTOMER. 

CUSTOMER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE SERVICE IS NOT INTENDED OR 

SUITABLE FOR USE IN SITUATIONS OR ENVIRONMENTS WHERE THE FAILURE OR TIME 

DELAYS OF, OR ERRORS OR INACCURACIES IN THE CONTENT, DATA OR INFORMATION 

PROVIDED BY OR THROUGH THE SERVICE COULD LEAD TO DEATH, PERSONAL INJURY, 

OR SEVERE PHYSICAL OR ENVIRONMENTAL DAMAGE, INCLUDING WITHOUT 

LIMITATION THE OPERATION OF NUCLEAR FACILITIES, AIR CRAFT NAVIGATION OR 

COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL, LIFE SUPPORT OR WEAPONS 

SYSTEMS. 

NO ORAL OR WRITTEN INFORMATION OR ADVICE GIVEN BY USCC OR AN USCC 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE SHALL CREATE A WARRANTY NOT EXPRESSLY STATED 

IN THIS AGREEMENT. SHOULD THE SERVICE PROVE DEFECTIVE, CUSTOMER ASSUMES 

THE ENTIRE COST OF ALL NECESSARY SERVICING, REPAIR OR CORRECTION. 

7.   Limitation of Liability. 

IN NO EVENT, WHETHER AS A BREACH OF CONTRACT, WARRANTY, TORT 

(INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), MISREPRESENTATION (WHETHER INNOCENT OR 

NEGLIGENT), STRICT LIABILITY, STATUTE OR OTHERWISE SHALL USCC BE LIABLE FOR 

ANY INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, 

INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF PROFITS, CORRUPTION OR 

LOSS OF DATA OR INFORMATION, FAILURE TO TRANSMIT OR RECEIVE ANY DATA OR 

INFORMATION, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION OR ANY OTHER COMMERCIAL DAMAGES OR 

LOSSES ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR CUSTOMER’S USE OF INABILITY TO 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BC75CD6-9982-4006-8D9E-8647E2992992

144

Item 16.



 

 

 4 

 

USE THE SERVICE, EVEN IF USCC HAS BEEN ADVISED OR IS AWARE OF THE POSSIBILITY 

OF SUCH DAMAGES AND REGARDLESS OF THE THEORY OF LIABILITY (CONTRACT, TORT 

OR OTHERWISE), AND EVEN IF USCC HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH 

DAMAGES. IN NO EVENT SHALL USCC’S TOTAL LIABILITY TO CUSTOMER FOR ALL 

DAMAGES (OTHER THAN AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE LAW IN CASES 

INVOLVING PERSONAL INJURY) EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF FIFTY DOLLARS ($50.00). THE 

FOREGOING LIMITATIONS WILL APPLY EVEN IF THE ABOVE STATED REMEDY FAILS OF 

ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE. NOTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT SHALL EXCLUDE OR LIMIT 

USCC’S LIABILITY FOR FRAUD, DEATH, OR PERSONAL INJURY CAUSED BY ITS 

NEGLIGENCE, OR ANY LIABILITY THAT CANNOT BE EXCLUDED BY LAW. 

8.   Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and 

shall be deemed given by a Party to the other Party when either personally served or after 3 business 

days if mailed by certified, registered mail, return receipt requested, or after 1 business day if 

delivered by a reputable overnight delivery service or by facsimile transmission to: 

 

USCC: 

USCC Distribution Co. LLC Customer: 

Attn: Director or Business Solutions Attn: __Julie Sorensen____________  

8410 West Bryn Mawr 

Chicago, IL 60631 

FAX #: (773)864-3133 _220 Clay St______ 

 _Cedar Falls______________ 

 

 

With a copy to: 
USCC Distribution Co. LLC     

Attn: Legal and Regulatory Affairs 

8410 West Bryn Mawr 

Chicago, IL 60631 

FAX #: (773)864-3133 

 

and to: 

 

Stephen P. Fitzell, Esq. 

Sidley Austin LLP 

One S. Dearborn Street 

Chicago, IL  60603 

FAX #: (312)853-7036 

   

If either Party changes its address during the term of the Agreement, it shall so advise the other Party 

in writing, and all notices thereafter required to be given shall be sent to such new address. 

9.   Assignment. Neither Party may assign or transfer this Agreement by operation of law or otherwise 

except as set forth in this Section.  USCC may assign or transfer this Agreement by operation of 

law or otherwise to any USCC Affiliate without the prior written consent of Customer. Either 

Party may assign or transfer this Agreement by operation of law or otherwise:  (a) in connection with 

any merger or consolidation of such Party with another entity, provided that such Party furnishes the 

other Party with written notice of such assignment or transfer within ten (10) business days of such 

merger or consolidation; or (b) in connection with the sale of substantially all of the Party’s assets 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BC75CD6-9982-4006-8D9E-8647E2992992

145

Item 16.



 

 

 5 

 

(including the rights of a Party under this Agreement), provided, that (i) the assignee thereof shall 

assume all of such Party’s obligations hereunder, (ii) the Party furnishes the other Party with notice of 

such assignment and assumption within ten (10) business days after the same, and (iii) solely with 

respect to an assignment by Customer, the assignee is organized under the laws of one of the fifty 

United States. Subject to the foregoing, all provisions contained in this Agreement shall extend to and 

be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective permitted successors and permitted assigns. 

Any assignment in violation of this Section shall be void and of no effect. 

10.   Entire Agreement; Modification. This Agreement constitutes the complete understanding of the 

Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous 

agreements, discussions, negotiations, promises, proposals, representations and understandings 

(whether written or oral) between the Parties with regard to such subject matter.  The terms, 

conditions, covenants and other provisions of this Agreement may be modified, amended, 

supplemented or otherwise changed only by a written instrument (excluding e-mail or similar 

electronic transmissions) that specifically purports to do so and is physically executed by a duly 

authorized representative of each Party. 

11.   Governing Law, Venue and Language.  THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY 

AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, 

WITHOUT REGARD TO PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW.  THE UNITED NATIONS 

CONVENTION ON CONTRACTS FOR THE INTERNATIONAL SALE OF GOODS SHALL 

NOT APPLY TO THIS AGREEMENT.  THE GOVERNING LANGUAGE FOR THIS 

AGREEMENT SHALL BE ENGLISH, AND NO CONCURRENT OR SUBSEQUENT 

TRANSLATION OF THIS AGREEMENT INTO ANY LANGUAGE SHALL MODIFY ANY 

TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT. VENUE FOR ANY LEGAL ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR 

RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY THE STATE OR FEDERAL 

COURTS LOCATED IN CHICAGO, ILLINOIS. THE PARTIES HEREBY CONSENT TO THE 

JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS.  

12.   Relationship of the Parties.  The relationship between the Parties to this Agreement is and shall 

be that of independent contractors.  The Parties expressly acknowledge that nothing in this Agreement 

shall be construed to create or imply a partnership, joint venture, agency relationship or contract of 

employment.  Neither Party shall have the authority to make any statement, representation nor 

commitment of any kind, or to take any action that shall be binding on the other Party except as 

authorized in writing by the Party to be bound. 

13.   Survival. The provisions of this Agreement that, by their nature and content, must survive the 

completion, rescission, termination or expiration of this Agreement in order to achieve the 

fundamental purposes of this Agreement shall so survive and continue to bind the Parties.  Without 

limiting the generality of the forgoing, the Parties specifically acknowledge that the following 

provisions of the Agreement shall survive such completion, rescission, termination or expiration:  

3(c), 5, 6, 7, 8-14, and 16. 

14.   No Waiver; Severability. USCC’s failure to enforce any right or remedy available under this 

Agreement is not a waiver.  If any part of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the 

remainder of this Agreement will remain in force. 

15.   Force Majeure.  The obligations hereunder of each Party shall be suspended while and to the 

extent that such Party is prevented from complying herewith in whole or in part by any event beyond 

the reasonable control of such Party, which for purposes of this Agreement shall include, without 

limitation, acts of God, earthquakes, unavoidable accidents, laws, rules, regulations or orders of 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BC75CD6-9982-4006-8D9E-8647E2992992

146

Item 16.



 

 

 6 

 

government authorities, acts of war (declared or not), terrorism, hostilities, blockades, civil 

disturbances, embargoes, strikes or any other similar event or cause.  If any event described in the 

preceding sentence should result in the suspension of either Party’s performance of its obligations 

hereunder, such Party shall give written notice of such suspension to the other Party, specifying in 

reasonable detail the nature of the event causing such suspension.  Either Party may terminate this 

Agreement  immediately upon notice to the other Party if such other Party’s performance has been 

suspended due to a force majeure for a period of thirty (30) days or longer, and if such notice is given 

while the force majeure is continuing. 

16.   Electronic Documents.  USCC hereby gives notice of its right to convert this Agreement to 

electronic format and retain this Agreement solely in an electronic format.  USCC may provide this 

Agreement in electronic form or may provide a reproduction of this Agreement from its electronic 

copy in the event of any dispute regarding the rights and obligations of the Parties under this 

Agreement.  The Parties agree that any document in electronic format or any document reproduced 

from an electronic format shall not be denied legal effect, validity, or enforceability and shall meet 

any requirement to provide an original or hard copy. 

17.   Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 

an original, and all of which together shall constitute one instrument. 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement by their duly 

authorized representatives as of the Effective Date. 

USCC Distribution Co, LLC  [____City of Cedar Falls______] 

 

 

By:  ____________________________________ By:_________________________________ 

 Name:        Name: 

 Title:       Title: 

 

 

ACTIVE 218947747v.2 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3BC75CD6-9982-4006-8D9E-8647E2992992

Dan Jaeger

Sales Manager

2/7/2023 | 7:52 AM CST

Mike Litscher

147

Item 16.



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 3BC75CD6998240068D9E8647E2992992 Status: Delivered

Subject:  DEP Cedar Falls.doc

SFA Opportunity ID: 

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 6 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 1 Initials: 0 Tyler Meusburger

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

30 N Lasalle St Ste 4000

Chicago, IL  60602

Tyler.Meusburger@uscellular.com

IP Address: 163.116.133.120

Record Tracking
Status: Original

             2/7/2023 7:32:44 AM

Holder: Tyler Meusburger

             Tyler.Meusburger@uscellular.com

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Dan Jaeger

dan.jaeger@cedarfalls.com

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 2/7/2023 7:35:33 AM

Viewed: 2/7/2023 8:21:29 AM 

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Mike Litscher

mike.litscher@uscellular.com

Sales Manager

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Drawn on Device

Using IP Address: 98.144.116.109

Signed using mobile

Sent: 2/7/2023 7:35:33 AM

Viewed: 2/7/2023 7:51:06 AM 

Signed: 2/7/2023 7:52:01 AM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 2/7/2023 7:35:34 AM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 2/7/2023 7:51:06 AM

Signing Complete Security Checked 2/7/2023 7:52:01 AM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

148

Item 16.



149

Item 17.



150

Item 17.



151

Item 17.



152

Item 17.



153

Item 17.



   DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

RECREATION CENTER 
110 E. 13TH STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8636 
FAX 319-273-8656 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Andrew Wagner, Recreation Administrative Supervisor 

 DATE: February 24, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Lease approval – Flood buyout property 

 
 
Residents often express an interest in leasing the vacant parcels of land which are part 
of a periodic flood buyout program, for additional open green space adjacent to their 
property or to plant gardens.   
 
Attached to this cover memo is a lease requiring approval from the City Council. The 
individual who signed the lease provided the City with the necessary liability insurance 
coverage in order to utilize the property.  
 
This leasing program is beneficial not only for the neighbors, but the City as well.  The 
parcels are mowed and maintained by the lessees during the growing season, which 
saves the City maintenance dollars and allows park staff to spend time maintaining 
other properties.   
 
The Department of Community Development recommends that the City Council 
approve this lease.  Let me know if you have any questions or comments. 

  
 

154

Item 18.



155

Item 18.



156

Item 18.



157

Item 18.



158

Item 18.



159

Item 18.



160

Item 18.



161

Item 18.



162

Item 18.



163

Item 18.



164

Item 18.



165

Item 19.



166

Item 19.



167

Item 19.



168

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 6, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project 
  City Project Number: SA-002-3182 
  Contract Documents 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair 
Project. 
 
This project involves the installation of a lift station on Minnetonka Drive in Cedar Falls, 
IA, installation of 498 linear feet of force main, 166 linear feet of gravity sewer, and 66 
linear feet of water main. The project also includes replacement of storm sewer and 
subdrain, PCC pavement and sidewalks, landscaping, electrical work, erosion control, 
seeding, and other miscellaneous items required to complete the work. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the Oak 
Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

169

Item 20.



170

Item 20.



171

Item 20.



172

Item 20.



173

Item 20.



174

Item 20.



175

Item 20.



176

Item 20.



177

Item 20.



178

Item 20.



179

Item 20.



180

Item 20.



181

Item 20.



182

Item 20.



183

Item 20.



184

Item 20.



185

Item 20.



186

Item 20.



187

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: March 6, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Various Intersection Improvements 
  City Project Number: TS-000-3294 
  Contract Documents 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
K&W Electric, Inc. for the construction of the Various Intersection Improvements Project. 
 
This project consists of improvements at three city intersections. A new traffic signal at 
Hudson/Ridgeway, and landscaping improvements in the roundabout intersections at 
Prairie Parkway/Prairie View Road and Prairie Parkway/Brandilynn Boulevard. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with K&W Electric for the construction of the Various Intersection 
Improvements. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

188

Item 21.



189

Item 21.



190

Item 21.



191

Item 21.



192

Item 21.



193

Item 21.



194

Item 21.



195

Item 21.



196

Item 21.



197

Item 21.



198

Item 21.



199

Item 21.



200

Item 21.



201

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: February 24, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Warranty Deed 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to University 
Avenue from a 4-lane roadway to a 3-lane roadway. Included in the project will be the 
intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th Street which 
will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic safety and flow 
in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to the water main, 
sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous roadway items. The 
project required partial acquisition for new city ROW from nine (9) properties. In addition, 
two (2) total take acquisitions were required to accommodate the new roundabout at the 
12th/Main intersection. The City has closed on the following acquisitions: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address Acquisition Type 

197 K3D, LLC 1123-1125 Main Street Total Take 

206 Jonathan and Olivia Mossman 1217 Main Street Partial 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the warranty deed for 
these property acquisitions. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

202

Item 22.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

203

Item 22.

AndreasenL
Line



204

Item 22.



205

Item 22.



206

Item 22.



207

Item 22.



208

Item 22.



209

Item 22.



210

Item 22.



211

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: March 6, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1  
  City Project Number RC-092-3271 
  Fee Title Acquisitions and Easements (Temporary and Permanent) 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning the reconstruction of the North Cedar Heights Area 
Phase 1, primarily along West Ridgewood Drive and Timber Drive.  The project requires 
the acquisition of temporary and permanent easements and some fee title acquisitions 
from twenty-three (23) properties to complete construction. The owners of the following 
properties have accepted our offer, with the remaining properties still returning all 
necessary documents. 
 

 

Parcel Property Fee Owner Purchase

# Owner Permanent Temporary Title Agreement Included

100 Fairhurst 2125 Greenwood Ave X X X X

101 Vasquez 2211 Greenwood Ave X X X

102 Byrd 2204 Greenwood Ave X X X

103 Yezek 1612 W. Ridgewood Dr X X

104 Guy 1606 W. Ridgewood Dr X X

105 Shepherd 1522 W. Ridgewood Dr X X

106 Andersen 1514 W. Ridgewood Dr X X

107 Anderson 1506 W. Ridgewood Dr X X X X

108 Brunk 1500 W. Ridgewood Dr X X X

109 Hall 1424 W. Ridgewood Dr X X X

110 Schrage 1513 Cherry Ln X X

111 Connell/Chilocote 1514 Cherry Ln X X X

112 Moore 1421 W. Ridgewood Dr X X

201 Lee/Lowell 2015 Timber Dr XX X X

202 Sanders 2524 Timber Dr X X X

203 Goetz 2506 Timber Dr X X

204 Patterson 1915 Timber Dr X X

205 Green 1911 Timber Dr X X

206 Dowell 2435 Greenwood Ave X X X

208 Solhiem/Yancy 2436 Greenwood Ave X X

Address

Easement TypeStreet

212

Item 23.



 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. Also attached are the 
individual Owner Purchase Agreements, and the documentation for each individual 
temporary or permanent easement. 
 
The City has used General Obligation Funds for the design and right of way portion of 
this project. The City entered into a Supplemental Agreement with AECOM, Inc., of 
Waterloo, Iowa, on May 16, 2022 for property acquisition services. Funds for this project 
are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in under item number 
109. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary closing documents and 
staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the 
North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
 Kevin Rogers, City Attorney 
 Lisa Roeding, City Controller/Treasurer 

213

Item 23.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

214

Item 23.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

215

Item 23.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

216

Item 23.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

217

Item 23.



218

Item 23.



219

Item 23.



220

Item 23.



221

Item 23.



222

Item 23.



223

Item 23.



224

Item 23.



225

Item 23.



226

Item 23.



227

Item 23.



228

Item 23.



229

Item 23.



230

Item 23.



231

Item 23.



232

Item 23.



233

Item 23.



234

Item 23.



235

Item 23.



236

Item 23.



237

Item 23.



238

Item 23.



239

Item 23.



240

Item 23.



241

Item 23.



242

Item 23.



243

Item 23.



244

Item 23.



245

Item 23.



246

Item 23.



247

Item 23.



248

Item 23.



249

Item 23.



250

Item 23.



251

Item 23.



252

Item 23.



253

Item 23.



254

Item 23.



255

Item 23.



256

Item 23.



257

Item 23.



258

Item 23.



259

Item 23.



260

Item 23.



261

Item 23.



262

Item 23.



263

Item 23.



264

Item 23.



265

Item 23.



266

Item 23.



267

Item 23.



268

Item 23.



269

Item 23.



270

Item 23.



271

Item 23.



272

Item 23.



273

Item 23.



274

Item 23.



275

Item 23.



276

Item 23.



277

Item 23.



278

Item 23.



279

Item 23.



280

Item 23.



281

Item 23.



282

Item 23.



283

Item 23.



284

Item 23.



285

Item 23.



286

Item 23.



287

Item 23.



288

Item 23.



289

Item 23.



290

Item 23.



291

Item 23.



292

Item 23.



293

Item 23.



294

Item 23.



295

Item 23.



296

Item 23.



297

Item 23.



298

Item 23.



299

Item 23.



300

Item 23.



301

Item 23.



302

Item 23.



303

Item 23.



304

Item 23.



305

Item 23.



306

Item 23.



307

Item 23.



308

Item 23.



309

Item 23.



310

Item 23.



311

Item 23.



312

Item 23.



313

Item 23.



314

Item 23.



315

Item 23.



316

Item 23.



317

Item 23.



318

Item 23.



319

Item 23.



320

Item 23.



321

Item 23.



322

Item 23.



323

Item 23.



324

Item 23.



325

Item 23.



326

Item 23.



327

Item 23.



328

Item 23.



329

Item 23.



330

Item 23.



331

Item 23.



332

Item 23.



333

Item 23.



334

Item 23.



335

Item 23.



336

Item 23.



337

Item 23.



338

Item 23.



339

Item 23.



340

Item 23.



341

Item 23.



342

Item 23.



343

Item 23.



344

Item 23.



345

Item 23.



346

Item 23.



347

Item 23.



348

Item 23.



349

Item 23.



350

Item 23.



351

Item 23.



352

Item 23.



353

Item 23.



354

Item 23.



355

Item 23.



356

Item 23.



357

Item 23.



358

Item 23.



359

Item 23.



360

Item 23.



361

Item 23.



362

Item 23.



363

Item 23.



364

Item 23.



365

Item 23.



366

Item 23.



367

Item 23.



368

Item 23.



369

Item 23.



370

Item 23.



371

Item 23.



372

Item 23.



373

Item 23.



374

Item 23.



375

Item 23.



376

Item 23.



377

Item 23.



378

Item 23.



379

Item 23.



380

Item 23.



381

Item 23.



382

Item 23.



383

Item 23.



384

Item 23.



385

Item 23.



386

Item 23.



387

Item 23.



388

Item 23.



389

Item 23.



390

Item 23.



391

Item 23.



392

Item 23.



393

Item 23.



394

Item 23.



395

Item 23.



396

Item 23.



397

Item 23.



398

Item 23.



399

Item 23.



400

Item 23.



401

Item 23.



402

Item 23.



403

Item 23.



404

Item 23.



405

Item 23.



406

Item 23.



407

Item 23.



408

Item 23.



409

Item 23.



410

Item 23.



411

Item 23.



412

Item 23.



413

Item 23.



414

Item 23.



415

Item 23.



416

Item 23.



417

Item 23.



418

Item 23.



419

Item 23.



420

Item 23.



421

Item 23.



422

Item 23.



423

Item 23.



424

Item 23.



425

Item 23.



426

Item 23.



427

Item 23.



428

Item 23.



429

Item 23.



430

Item 23.



431

Item 23.



432

Item 23.



433

Item 23.



434

Item 23.



435

Item 23.



436

Item 23.



437

Item 23.



438

Item 23.



439

Item 23.



440

Item 23.



441

Item 23.



442

Item 23.



443

Item 23.



444

Item 23.



445

Item 23.



446

Item 23.



447

Item 23.



448

Item 23.



449

Item 23.



450

Item 23.



451

Item 23.



452

Item 23.



453

Item 23.



454

Item 23.



455

Item 23.



456

Item 23.



457

Item 23.



458

Item 23.



459

Item 23.



460

Item 23.



461

Item 23.



462

Item 23.



463

Item 23.



464

Item 23.



465

Item 23.



466

Item 23.



467

Item 23.



468

Item 23.



469

Item 23.



470

Item 23.



471

Item 23.



472

Item 23.



473

Item 23.



474

Item 23.



475

Item 23.



476

Item 23.



477

Item 23.



478

Item 23.



479

Item 23.



480

Item 23.



481

Item 23.



482

Item 23.



483

Item 23.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: February 27, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY2024 Budget 

 
You may recall at Council Goal Setting that it was summarized about the new 
requirements that came about three years ago from the State of Iowa related to budget 
hearings.  The first part of these new requirements is having a hearing setting the 
maximum levy.  Attached is the new required form giving notice of the hearing to set 
this maximum levy.  The levy rate as set by the attached notice, is balancing a budget 
that includes all of the items addressed at goal setting relating to capital projects, 
staffing, and services.   
 
You may also recall that unfortunately this new state notice, does not include the total 
levy rate, it only has certain levies.  Therefore, this is not the true picture of the total levy 
rate.  For example, the total rate for the prior year was $11.51 and you will see by the 
notice that it only shows $10.76.  For the upcoming FY24, the form shows a rate of 
$10.81, however, the total rate is being proposed at $11.74.  In addition, because of 
how the form works, it shows an increase of .72% for FY24.  However, the actual effect 
on the residential property owner will be a 2.98% increase in property taxes using this 
maximum levy.  Commercial and Industrial will see a 2.0% increase and multi-
residential will see a 12.56% decrease.  
 
The step for this council meeting on March 6th is simply setting the date to hold the 

hearing for the maximum levy rate as required by the Code of Iowa.  I would ask that 

the public hearing be set for March 20, 2023. 

 
If you have any questions, about the budget or the budget process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 

484

Item 24.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - CITY OF CEDAR FALLS - PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX LEVY
Fiscal Year July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year City property tax levy as follows:
Meeting Date:    3/20/2023    Meeting Time:    07:00 PM    Meeting Location:    Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA

At the public hearing any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of the proposed tax levy. After adoption of the proposed tax levy, the City
Council will publish notice and hold a hearing on the proposed city budget.

City Website (if available)
cedarfalls.com  City Telephone Number

(319) 273-8600
Current Year Certified

Property Tax 2022 - 2023
Budget Year Effective

Property Tax 2023 - 2024
Budget Year Proposed Maximum

Property Tax 2023 - 2024
Annual %

CHG
Regular Taxable Valuation 2,064,620,691 2,068,909,898 2,068,909,898
Tax Levies:
Regular General 16,723,428 16,723,428 16,758,170
Contract for Use of Bridge 0
Opr & Maint Publicly Owned Transit 456,100 456,100 474,340
Rent, Ins. Maint. Of Non-Owned Civ. Ctr. 0
Opr & Maint of City-Owned Civic Center 0
Planning a Sanitary Disposal Project 0
Liability, Property & Self-Insurance Costs 249,340 249,340 312,770
Support of Local Emer. Mgmt. Commission 576,590 576,590 1,104,190
Emergency 0
Police & Fire Retirement 1,136,090 1,136,090 1,123,780
FICA & IPERS 1,593,540 1,593,540 1,639,300
Other Employee Benefits 1,473,770 1,473,770 957,840
Total Tax Levy 22,208,858 22,208,858 22,370,390 0.72
Tax Rate 10.75687 10.73457 10.81265

Explanation of significant increases in the budget:
Significant increases to the budget are caused by staffing costs, including negotiated salary and benefit increases. Also, consolidated dispatch costs increased significantly
due to the formula being changed.
If applicable, the above notice also available online at:
cedarfalls.com; https://www.facebook.com/citycf; https://twitter.com/CityCF; https://wwww.instagram.com/cedar_falls_iowa/

*Total city tax rate will also include voted general fund levy, debt service levy, and capital improvement reserve levy.
**Budget year effective property tax rate is the rate that would be assessed for these levies if the dollars requested is not changed in the coming budget year

485

Item 24.



486

Item 24.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 6, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend the Downtown Character District (TA22-003) 

 

 
On July 18th, 2022, the City Council held a public hearing on an ordinance to amend the Downtown 
Character District zoning regulations recommended unanimously by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at their June 8th meeting. In effect, this ordinance would have required site plans for 
new buildings proposed in the Urban General, Urban General 2, and Storefront frontages to be 
reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and approved by the City Council.   
 
After the close of the public hearing the City Council discussed the proposed ordinance and a 
motion passed to refer the ordinance back to the Planning and Zoning Commission with a petition 
for additional amendments to the zoning ordinance “to include review of any site plan that would 
expand the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196, 
C.2.b.”  The minutes of this discussion are listed below.  
  
Minutes from the July 18th City Council meeting:  
 
It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that an ordinance, amending Chapter 26, 
Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning Commission review of site plans 
in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be passed upon its first consideration. Following 
questions by Councilmembers Harding and Kruse, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and 
Planning & Community Services Manager Howard, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires 
to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission to include review of any site plan that would expand 
the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar to language in Section 26-196, C.2.b. 
Following comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Dunn, Harding and Sires, 
and responses by Howard, it was moved by Harding to call the question on the original motion. 
Motion failed 3-4, with deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield and Sires voting Nay. Following comments by 
Mayor Green, and questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Dunn 
and Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the motion to petition the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. Motion carried 4-3, with Dunn, Schultz and Harding voting Nay. 
  
Direction from Planning and Zoning Commission 
 
At the Commission’s August 10, 2022 meeting, the Commission discussed the petition from the 

487

Item 25.



 
 

City Council and directed staff to prepare draft language for consideration at a public hearing on 
August 24, 2022.   
 
At their August 24,2022 meeting, on a vote of 4-5, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended denial of the attached amendments to the zoning ordinance.  
 
Council Action at the September 6, 2022 meeting: At the Council meeting on September 6, 
the City Council postponed setting the public hearing date until after Council decided whether to 
amend the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance disapproved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission from 2/3 majority to simple majority.  
 
The ordinance amendment regarding the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission was resolved at the January 3, 2023 
Council meeting when the City Council failed to override Mayor’s veto of said ordinance change.   
 
RECOMMENDATION ON POSTPONED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS: Staff now 
recommends that the Council set a date of public hearing for March 20, 2023 on amendments to 
the zoning code relative to the petition from the City Council to require review and approval of site 
plans by the Planning and Zoning Commission and the City Council for certain projects in the 
Downtown Character District as set forth in the attached red-lined draft. The full staff report with 
Planning and Zoning Commission minutes will be forwarded to the Council in the March 20, 2023 
Council packet.    
 
Note: Due to the disapproval of the proposed amendments by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, it will require 2/3 majority of Council to approve the amendments.   
 
 
Attachments:  

 Red-lined draft of the most recent proposed changes to the zoning code per the petition from City Council. 

 

 

488

Item 25.



Note that in the red-lined version of the proposed code amendments, the strike-through 
notation indicates language to be deleted. Underlined text is new language added.  All 
other language is unchanged and is included to provide context for the changes 
proposed. The highlighted section is the language that was added per City Council’s 
petition for further revisions forwarded after the public hearing at City Council on July 18, 
2022. 

Amend Section 26-191C., Applicability, as follows:  

C.  Applicability and Development Review 

 1.  Where an adopted Regulating Plan is shown on the zoning map, these Character District 

standards immediately apply at the parcel level.  

 2. The process for developing or redeveloping within a Character District is delineated in 

Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. All applications for development or redevelopment 

within a Character District shall be reviewed and approved according to the procedures 

set forth in Section 26-36 through Section 26-39. Applications shall be administratively 

reviewed and approved, except for the following:   

a. Site plans for new buildings on property designated as Urban General, Urban General 

2, or Storefront on an adopted Regulating Plan.  

b. Any plan for expanding the gross floor area of an existing building on property 

designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 

Regulating Plan.  

c. Any plan for one or more additional dwelling units within an existing building on 

property designated as Urban General, Urban General 2, or Storefront on an adopted 

Regulating Plan.  

3. With regard to any of the exceptions listed in subparagraphs a., b., and c., above, the 

Zoning Administrator, in consultation with the Zoning Review Committee and Technical 

Review Committee, shall prepare and forward a report along with the site plan and 

supporting documents to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council for review 

and approval according to procedures set forth in Section 26-36(d), Review and Decision-

making. 

Amend Section 26-36 and 26-37, as follows:  

Sec. 26-36. Administrative Determination Site Plan Review, Proportionate Compliance 

Determinations, and Minor Adjustments 

(a) APPLICABILITY GENERAL APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS 

The Zoning Administrator shall review and decide upon applications for the following 
administrative reviews and code adjustments in consultation with the Zoning Review 
Committee(ZRC) and/or the staff Technical Review Committee, as applicable. Some of 
these processes have additional review and approval requirements; a cross-reference to 
those requirements is provided in the right column.  

Permit or Adjustment Additional Review Requirements 

Site Plan Section 26-37.D 

489

Item 25.



Proportionate 
Compliance 

n/a 

Minor Adjustment Section 26-39.E 

Applications and submittal materials required for site plan review, proportionate compliance 
determinations, and minor adjustments under this Chapter shall be submitted on forms and 
in such numbers as required by the City. The applicable filing fee shall be paid at the time 
the application is filed. Additional fees may be required for re-submittals. Fees are 
determined by resolution of the City Council.  

(b) APPLICATION  COMPLETENESS REVIEW 

(1) Applications shall not be processed until all fees and materials have been submitted and 
are deemed sufficient complete in form and content such that recommendations, as 
required, and a decision may be made on the application by the Zoning Administrator, 
or other decision-making body, as specified in this chapter. The Zoning Administrator 
shall determine application sufficiency completeness.  

(2) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the Zoning Administrator shall inform 
the applicant of the specific submittal requirements that have not been met. The Zoning 
Administrator may provide notice in writing, electronically, or in conversation with the 
applicant.   

(3) If an application is deemed insufficient incomplete, the applicant must resolve and 
resubmit the materials required to complete the application within 30 days of the date 
informed of the insufficiency of the application.  
a. An insufficient incomplete application that has not been revised to meet the 

completeness requirements shall expire on the 30th day.  An expired application 
shall be returned to the applicant along with any original documents submitted in 
support of the application.  

b. The City, at its discretion, may retain the application fee paid. Once an application 
has expired, the application must be resubmitted in full, including payment of the 
application fee. 

(c) REVIEW, REFERRAL, AND RECOMMENDATION 

(1) Upon submission of an application, the Zoning Administrator shall review the application 
and accompanying documentation to determine whether the information included in the 
application is sufficient to evaluate the application against the approval criteria of the 
procedure or permit requested. 

(2) The Zoning Administrator may refer any application to the Zoning Review Committee 
(ZRC) or Technical Review Committee (TRC) for review and recommendation.  

(d) REVIEW AND DECISION-MAKING 

(1) The Zoning Administrator shall review the Applications shall be reviewed for 
conformance with all applicable provisions of this Code chapter.  

(2) To be approved, an application shall be fully consistent with the standards of this chapter 
Code unless a minor adjustment is concurrently approved to allow specified deviation 
from applicable standards. An administrative approval may include instructions and 
clarifications regarding compliance with this Code, but shall not be approved with 
conditions that require action beyond the specific requirements of the City Code of 
Ordinances.   

(3) Except as specified in paragraph (4) below, after consultation with the TRC and ZRC, as 
applicable, the Zoning Administrator shall approve or deny the applications for site plan 
review and minor adjustments and shall make determinations regarding proportionate 
compliance and provide written notification of the decision to the applicant. If an 
application is denied, the written notification shall include the reasons for denial. 
Administrative decisions are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62.  

490

Item 25.



 
(4) For any site plan that requires Planning and Zoning Commission and/or City Council 

review and approval, as set forth in this Chapter, the Zoning Administrator shall prepare 
a staff report and recommendation based on the approval criteria, standards and 
requirements of this Code, and any other applicable policies and regulations. The staff 
report and recommendation shall be forwarded to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
for its review and recommendation to the City Council. If the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommends denial, the site plan shall not be forwarded to the City Council, 
unless so requested by the applicant in writing. After consideration of the staff report and 
the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendation, the City Council may approve, 
approve with conditions, or deny the site plan. If a site plan is denied, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and/or City Council, as applicable, shall state the reasons for denial.  

 
(e) APPEAL 

1. Administrative determinations are appealable pursuant to Section 26-62. 

Sec. 26-37. Site Plan  

(a) APPLICABILITY 

The purpose of this section is to set forth the procedures and criteria for review and approval 
of site plans, which shall include when referenced in this Chapter, site development plans, 
development plans, or similar.  Site plans are technical documents that illustrate how the 
structure(s), layout of an area, and proposed uses meet the requirements of this chapter and 
any other applicable ordinances, standards, regulations, and with all previously approved 
plans applicable to the property.  

(b) AUTHORITY 

A site plan is required for: 

(1) Character Districts 

a. Any application for development in a character district. 
b. All requests for structures, architectural elements or accessory structures (front 

porch, front yard fence) at or forward of the required building line, and accessory or 
temporary uses; however, for minor accessory structures not located forward of the 
required building line, such as sheds, fences, or decks, the site plan shall only be 
required to show the location of the proposed structure or addition in relation to 
property boundaries, required setbacks, easements, and terrain changes as more 
fully detailed in this Code; 

(2) Traditional Zone Districts All other Zoning Districts 

a. Any application for a commercial, industrial, institutional, or multi-unit residential 
dwelling project development;  

b. Any application for development requiring site plan review, site development plan 
review, development plan review, plan review, or similar review as set forth 
elsewhere in this chapter.  

(c) APPLICATION PROCEDURES 

(1) A pre-application meeting with the Zoning Review Committee (ZRC) is required prior to 
the submission of a site plan application for development in a character district. Pre-
application meetings are optional and encouraged for all other applications. 

(2) The applicant shall submit the site plan application to the Planning and Community 
Services Division. Application submittal deadlines and requirements shall be established 
on submittal forms available from the Planning and Community Services Division and on 
the City’s website.   

491

Item 25.



(d) DECISION CRITERIA 

The site plan shall be reviewed against the following criteria:  

(1) The site plan is consistent with all applicable adopted plans and policies; 
(2) The site plan is consistent with any prior approvals, including any conditions that may 

have been placed on such approvals; and  
(3) The site plan conforms with all applicable requirements of this Code the Code of 

Ordinances, or with all applicable requirements as modified by a request for a an 
approved minor adjustment. 

(e) LIMITATION OF APPROVAL 

Zoning Administrator approval of a site plan does not in any way imply approval by any other 
City department. 

(f) EFFECT 

(1) Approved site plans shall be binding upon the property owner(s) and their successors 
and assigns.   

(2) No permit shall be issued for any building, structure, or use that does not conform to an 
approved site plan.   

(3) No building, structure, use or other element of the approved site plan shall be modified 
without amending the site plan, unless it is determined by the City that such modification 
will not require an amended site plan.   

(4) All buildings, structures and uses shall remain in conformance with the approved site 
plan or be subject to enforcement action. 

(g) POST-APPROVAL ACTIONS 

(1) Expiration  

a. Approved site plans shall expire one year after approval if the applicable permit(s) 
for the proposed development a building permit has have not been issued. or the 
approved use established. In the event that the documents expire due to the 
passage of this time period, new site plan review documents must be submitted for 
approval in the same manner as an original application for development review.   

b. For good cause, an extension not to exceed one year may be granted by the Zoning 
Administrator. Requests for an extension must be in writing stating the reasons for 
such request.  

(2) Modifications to Site plans  

The holder of an approved site plan may request an adjustment to the document, or the 
conditions of approval, by submitting either an application for minor adjustment or an 
amended site plan, whichever is appropriate, to the Zoning Administrator. An amended 
site plan shall be filed and processed in accordance with the procedures specified in 
this Chapter for the an initial site plan submittal, or as otherwise specified in this Chapter.  

 

492

Item 25.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 6, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend parking requirements in the Downtown 
Character District (TA22-004) 

 

 
At the Committee meeting on August 15, 2022, the City Council directed staff to forward to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission a petition to eliminate the mandatory requirements for shared parking from the 
zoning code that currently apply in the Downtown Character District.  The motion was made for this 
petition after a previous Council Committee discussion about the time and location standards for shared 
parking. It was decided that given the continued concerns about the shared parking requirements that 
the best course of action would be to eliminate these requirements from the zoning ordinance but 
continue to allow and even encourage voluntary agreements between property owners to share parking. 
In addition, a motion was made to increase the required parking for multi-unit dwellings from 0.75 spaces 
per bedroom to one parking space per bedroom. 
 
Background 
 
The Downtown Character District regulations were adopted by City Council on November 1, 2021. These 
new zoning regulations are intended to implement the Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan adopted in 
November of 2019. The vision plan was the result of public workshops, a week-long community design 
charrette, and other public outreach events that took place in 2019, where community members, 
including downtown merchants, property owners, residents, and other stakeholders were invited to share 
their feedback and ideas for the future of Downtown and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
The second phase of the project was to draft zoning regulations to encourage future development that is 
consistent with the adopted Vision.  The draft code was presented to the public in February, 2021. The 
Commission considered the new code at four special work sessions and held 3 public hearings to 
consider public comments and suggestions for changes to the code.  The Commission discussed all 
proposed changes to the draft and made decisions on each one before forwarding a final draft to the City 
Council for consideration in May 2021.  The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommended draft was 
reviewed at three City Council Committee of the Whole meetings and two work sessions before a public 
hearing was scheduled. The draft was debated at three separate readings before being adopted on 
November 1, 2021.  
 
In January 2022, the City Council petitioned the Planning and Zoning to consider eliminating the shared 
parking requirements in the code. Council expressed several concerns about the shared parking 
requirements, including concerns about requiring property owners to make their private property available 
for public use and about how the shared spaces will be managed and monitored over time. A majority of 
the City Council felt that the potential downsides outweighed the potential benefits of this requirement and 

493

Item 26.



 
 

requested the Commission consider eliminating the shared parking requirements from the zoning code. 
They noted that property owners would still have the option to voluntarily share their parking with other 
users or the public. The Commission considered this request at a public hearing on February 9 and on a 
3-4 vote disapproved the Council’s petition.  
 
At that same time the City Council also petitioned the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider 
increasing the parking requirement for multi-unit dwellings from 0.5 spaces per bedroom to 1 space per 
bedroom. Based on the recommendations of the parking study conducted by WGI in late 2018, along with 
stakeholder interviews during the Visioning process, the consultants drafting the Downtown Character 
District Code (Ferrell Madden), included a reduction in the parking requirements for residential within 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 1 space per bedroom to 0.5 spaces per bedroom (along with 0.25 
spaces per bedroom for shared parking).  
 
A majority of the City Council expressed concerns about lowering the parking requirements for residential 
uses in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings downtown and petitioned the Commission to consider re-
establishing the previous requirement of one parking space per bedroom.  
 
At a public hearing on February 9th, a motion to approve the Council’s petition failed for a lack of a second 
to the motion, and therefore was considered disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on a 4-3 
vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to increase the 
parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, 
but not less than 1 space per unit.  
 
Based on the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendations, the City Council approved the 
ordinance amendment to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit 
buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than one parking space per unit.  After a public hearing 
and three readings, the amendment was adopted on April 4, 2022.  
 
On September 14, 2022 the Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the Council’s latest petition to 
eliminate the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code and the petition to 
increase the parking requirements for mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 1 space per bedroom and held 
a public hearing on September 28, 2022 regarding the same.  

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: After a public hearing on September 28, 

2022, on vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), 
the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to eliminate 
the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code; and 
 
On a vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), the 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to increase 
the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom to 1 space per bedroom.   

 

Council Action at the October 17, 2022 meeting: At the Council meeting on October 17, 2022, 
the City Council postponed setting the public hearing date until after Council decided whether to 
amend the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance disapproved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission from 2/3 majority to simple majority.  
 
The ordinance amendment regarding the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission was resolved at the January 3, 2023 
Council meeting when the City Council failed to override Mayor’s veto of said ordinance change.   

494

Item 26.



 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ON POSTPONED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS:  
Staff now recommends that the Council set a public hearing date of March 20, 2022 to consider 
the recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission regarding each of the 
aforementioned petitions relative to:  

 Eliminating the shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District; and to  

 Increase the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in 
the Downtown Character District from 0.75 spaces per bedroom to 1 space per bedroom.   

 

Note: Due to the disapproval of the proposed amendments by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, it will require 2/3 majority of Council to approve the amendments.   
 

495

Item 26.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: March 6, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to amend parking requirements in the Downtown 
Character District (TA22-004) 

 

 
At the Committee meeting on August 15, 2022, the City Council directed staff to forward to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission a petition to eliminate the mandatory requirements for shared parking from the 
zoning code that currently apply in the Downtown Character District.  The motion was made for this 
petition after a previous Council Committee discussion about the time and location standards for shared 
parking. It was decided that given the continued concerns about the shared parking requirements that 
the best course of action would be to eliminate these requirements from the zoning ordinance but 
continue to allow and even encourage voluntary agreements between property owners to share parking. 
In addition, a motion was made to increase the required parking for multi-unit dwellings from 0.75 spaces 
per bedroom to one parking space per bedroom. 
 
Background 
 
The Downtown Character District regulations were adopted by City Council on November 1, 2021. These 
new zoning regulations are intended to implement the Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan adopted in 
November of 2019. The vision plan was the result of public workshops, a week-long community design 
charrette, and other public outreach events that took place in 2019, where community members, 
including downtown merchants, property owners, residents, and other stakeholders were invited to share 
their feedback and ideas for the future of Downtown and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
The second phase of the project was to draft zoning regulations to encourage future development that is 
consistent with the adopted Vision.  The draft code was presented to the public in February, 2021. The 
Commission considered the new code at four special work sessions and held 3 public hearings to 
consider public comments and suggestions for changes to the code.  The Commission discussed all 
proposed changes to the draft and made decisions on each one before forwarding a final draft to the City 
Council for consideration in May 2021.  The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommended draft was 
reviewed at three City Council Committee of the Whole meetings and two work sessions before a public 
hearing was scheduled. The draft was debated at three separate readings before being adopted on 
November 1, 2021.  
 
In January 2022, the City Council petitioned the Planning and Zoning to consider eliminating the shared 
parking requirements in the code. Council expressed several concerns about the shared parking 
requirements, including concerns about requiring property owners to make their private property available 
for public use and about how the shared spaces will be managed and monitored over time. A majority of 
the City Council felt that the potential downsides outweighed the potential benefits of this requirement and 

496

Item 27.



 
 

requested the Commission consider eliminating the shared parking requirements from the zoning code. 
They noted that property owners would still have the option to voluntarily share their parking with other 
users or the public. The Commission considered this request at a public hearing on February 9 and on a 
3-4 vote disapproved the Council’s petition.  
 
At that same time the City Council also petitioned the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider 
increasing the parking requirement for multi-unit dwellings from 0.5 spaces per bedroom to 1 space per 
bedroom. Based on the recommendations of the parking study conducted by WGI in late 2018, along with 
stakeholder interviews during the Visioning process, the consultants drafting the Downtown Character 
District Code (Ferrell Madden), included a reduction in the parking requirements for residential within 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 1 space per bedroom to 0.5 spaces per bedroom (along with 0.25 
spaces per bedroom for shared parking).  
 
A majority of the City Council expressed concerns about lowering the parking requirements for residential 
uses in multi-unit and mixed-use buildings downtown and petitioned the Commission to consider re-
establishing the previous requirement of one parking space per bedroom.  
 
At a public hearing on February 9th, a motion to approve the Council’s petition failed for a lack of a second 
to the motion, and therefore was considered disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on a 4-3 
vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to increase the 
parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, 
but not less than 1 space per unit.  
 
Based on the Planning and Zoning Commission’s recommendations, the City Council approved the 
ordinance amendment to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit 
buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than one parking space per unit.  After a public hearing 
and three readings, the amendment was adopted on April 4, 2022.  
 
On September 14, 2022 the Planning and Zoning Commission discussed the Council’s latest petition to 
eliminate the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code and the petition to 
increase the parking requirements for mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 1 space per bedroom and held 
a public hearing on September 28, 2022 regarding the same.  

 
Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation: After a public hearing on September 28, 

2022, on vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), 
the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to eliminate 
the shared parking requirements from the Downtown Character District Code; and 
 
On a vote of 1 aye (Saul) to 7 nays (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch and Moser), the 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of the petition from the City Council to increase 
the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom to 1 space per bedroom.   

 

Council Action at the October 17, 2022 meeting: At the Council meeting on October 17, 2022, 
the City Council postponed setting the public hearing date until after Council decided whether to 
amend the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance disapproved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission from 2/3 majority to simple majority.  
 
The ordinance amendment regarding the voting threshold necessary to pass an ordinance 
disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission was resolved at the January 3, 2023 
Council meeting when the City Council failed to override Mayor’s veto of said ordinance change.   

497

Item 27.



 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION ON POSTPONED ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENTS:  
Staff now recommends that the Council set a public hearing date of March 20, 2022 to consider 
the recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission regarding each of the 
aforementioned petitions relative to:  

 Eliminating the shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District; and to  

 Increase the required parking for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in 
the Downtown Character District from 0.75 spaces per bedroom to 1 space per bedroom.   

 

Note: Due to the disapproval of the proposed amendments by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, it will require 2/3 majority of Council to approve the amendments.   
 

498

Item 27.



499

Item 28.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 3/06/23 COUNCIL MEETING



500

Item 28.



501

Item 28.



502

Item 28.



503

Item 28.



504

Item 28.



505

Item 28.



506

Item 28.



507

Item 28.



508

Item 28.



509

Item 28.



510

Item 28.



511

Item 28.



512

Item 28.



513

Item 28.



514

Item 28.



515

Item 28.



516

Item 28.



517

Item 28.



518

Item 28.



519

Item 28.



520

Item 28.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 3/06/23 MEETING



521

Item 28.



522

Item 28.



523

Item 28.



524

Item 28.



525

Item 28.



526

Item 28.



527

Item 28.



528

Item 28.



529

Item 28.



530

Item 28.



531

Item 28.



532

Item 28.



533

Item 28.



534

Item 28.



535

Item 28.



536

Item 28.



537

Item 28.



538

Item 28.



539

Item 28.



540

Item 28.



541

Item 28.



From: Kelly Dunn <Kelly.Dunn2@cedarfalls.com>  
Sent: Saturday, February 25, 2023 1:41 PM 
To: CF-CityCouncil-DL <CityCouncilDL@cedarfalls.com>; Rob Green 
<Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com> 
Subject: Referral Dam Discussion  
 
Hello All, 
 
I would like to advise that I plan to make a referral at our next council meeting to discuss our 
river dam and the future of the dam on the Cedar River.  
Have a great day! 
 
Regards, 
Kelly  
 
 
Kelly Dunn 
City Council At Large 
Cedar Falls, IA 
319-215-6891 
 

542

Item 29.

mailto:Kelly.Dunn2@cedarfalls.com
mailto:CityCouncilDL@cedarfalls.com
mailto:Rob.Green@cedarfalls.com

	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of February 20, 2023
	230220MINUTES

	Item 2.	Condemnation Hearing - 2208 Coventry Lane
	1 -  Condemnation hearing - 2208 Coventry Ln.

	Item 3.	PH-Agreement for PD - McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC
	1_CC Memo for McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC Public Hearing 03-06-23
	2_Site Map
	3_Authorizing Resolution - McDonald Construction, LLC
	4_Agreement for Private Development
	5_Quit Claim Deed - McDonald Construction & Remodeling, LLC

	Item 4.	PH - 2023 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project
	1. Memo PH - 2023 Sewer Rehab
	2. SewerLining2023 Map
	3. Engineer's Estimate 2023 Sewer Rehab

	Item 5.	PH - 2023 Street Construction
	1. Memo PH - 2023 Street Construction
	2. Estimate

	Item 6.	PH- North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase I
	1. Memo PH - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Project Phase 1
	2. Estimate

	Item 7.	Committee Minutes - 02/20/23
	02-20-23 Standing Committees Minutes-Final

	Item 8.	Proclamation-Women's History Month
	2023-02-28_ProclamationsForCouncilApproval
	2023-03_WomensHistoryMonth

	Item 9.	Resignation - Melissa Heston
	Heston Resignation

	Item 10.	Departmental Monthly Report
	01 - January 2023 Departmental Monthly Report

	Item 11.	Mobile Merchant-Cedar Valley Bin Cleaning
	Cedar Valley Bin Cleaning-MM

	Item 12.	Tobacco Violation Agreement-Banis
	1. Order Accepting Agreement 2nd Violation - Assessment of Penalty
	2. Acknowledgment Settlement Agreement
	3. Notice of Hearing, 2nd Violation
	4. Banis Hearing Complaint-2nd

	Item 13.	Tobacco Permit Banis
	03062023 Tobacco Applications

	Item 14.	Liquor Beer 3-6-23
	Retail alcohol 3-6-23

	Item 16.	Apple Device Enrollment Program Facilitation Agreement
	Council Memo - US Cellular DEP
	_DEP_Cedar_Fallsdoc

	Item 17.	McWing-First Amendment
	4878_001

	Item 18.	Lease-Flood buyout property
	Requesting Approval for Buyout Lease
	Buyout Lease

	Item 19.	17th St Pump Repair
	CC - 17th St Memo & Quotes

	Item 20.	Contract - Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair
	1. Memo Contracts - Oak Park San
	2. Form Of Proposal -Oak Park Blvd
	3. Form Of Contract - Oak Park BLVD
	4. Maintenance Bond - Oak Park BLVD
	5. Liability Insurance - Oak Park BLVD

	Item 21.	Contract - Various Intersection Improvements
	1. Memo Contracts - Various Intersection Improvements
	2. Form Of Proposal - Various Intersections
	3. Form Of Contract - Various Intersections
	4. Maintenance Bond - Various Intersections
	5. Liability Insurance - Various Intersections

	Item 22.	Warranty Deeds- Main Street Reconstruction
	1. Warranty Deed Memo - Main Street Reconstruction (3)
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	Parcel 197 (1123-1125 Main St)
	Parcel 206 (1217 Main St)

	Item 23.	Acquisitions & Easements - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruction Phase I
	1.Memo - North Cedar Heights Area Reconstruciton Phase 1 ROW Acquisition
	2. Acquisition Locations Map
	3. Owner Purchase Agreements, Temporary Easements, and Permanent Easements

	Item 24.	Setting Max Levy Hearing Date
	1-budget max levy hearing council.mem
	2-FY24 Notice of Max Levy

	Item 25.	Set PH-Review of site plans in the Downtown Character District
	1. CC.memo.set PH.second petition.3.6.23
	2. draft language site plan review.8.24.22

	Item 26.	Set PH-Eliminate shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District
	Memo CC.set ph. text amd.shared parkingCD-DT.3.6.23

	Item 27.	Set PH-Increase parking requirements in the Downtown Character District
	Memo CC.set ph. text amd.shared parkingCD-DT.3.6.23

	Item 28.	Bills and Claims - 03/06/23
	1 Daily Invoices 030623
	2 Council Invoices 030623

	Item 29.	Dam Referral
	Dunn Referral

	Bottom

